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Vision FE=

To drive for unity and excellence of
the construction industry of Hong Kong

EEBEBEER BmRB

Mission £ ap

To strengthen the sustainability of the construction
industry in Hong Kong by providing a communications
platform, striving for continuous improvement,
increasing awareness of health and safety,

as well as improving skills development.
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} Chairman’s Message

"-~

With increasing roles and responsibilities to meet
the demands of the industry, to serve our industry
stakeholders and to meet our obligation to be a
platform for communication for the industry and
with the Government, it falls upon us to strive for
excellence and continual improvement, of which
| am confident we will endeavour to achieve.
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Chairman’s Message

It is my pleasure to present this annual report showcasing the
achievements and progress of the Construction Industry Council (CIC)
in 2013. The CIC, in collaboration with its stakeholders, continued
in its mission to define the strategic direction for the construction
industry in 2013.

We are now undergoing one of the busiest periods of construction
in Hong Kong's history and the forecast is that this activity level is to
continue for the coming 10 years. To meet the challenges facing the
industry, the Council has identified the following three strategic focus
areas: (a) safety; (b) manpower and training; and (c) image building
for the industry.

Safety First

Safety continued to be our number one priority in 2013. Facing up
to the challenge of multiple mega infrastructure projects in recent
years and in anticipation of the construction boom continuing
in the foreseeable future, the construction workforce has been
growing. The total number of valid registered construction workers
has increased by about 20% from 268,195 in 2009 to 322,477 in
2013. Ageing buildings have led to an increase in the demand for
repair, maintenance, alteration and addition (RMAA) works and
the construction of new buildings and projects has seen many new
workers entering the construction industry, and this poses challenges
for site safety.

Despite our efforts in publicising the importance of safety, the
construction industry still has the highest number of fatalities and
accident rates among all industries. In 2013 there were 22 fatal
accidents in the construction industry, (a decrease from 24 in 2012)
mainly related to work-at-height (15 cases) and work in tunnels
or underground work sites (4 cases). We are committed towards
developing a safety culture that ultimately achieves our goal of zero
accidents.

For the second consecutive year, in collaboration with the
Development Bureau, the CIC organised the Construction Safety
Week (27-31 May). After the success of the inaugural event in
2012, it was very encouraging to witness so many stakeholders
committed to improving the safety culture in our industry. The HKSAR
Chief Executive Mr. LEUNG Chun-ying led 30,000 construction
practitioners, at the Kai Tak Development Area and those who were
unable to attend took part by webcast. The webcast connected 800
construction sites around Hong Kong, with the goal of completing
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a morning exercise routine as well as committing a safety pledge
towards zero accidents within the construction industry. The
excellent participation from a cross section of industry participants
demonstrated their commitment towards promoting and reinforcing
the “Zero Accident” message.

Through our determined efforts we are not just protecting ourselves
and our colleagues, we are improving the image of the industry by
conveying to the general public that the construction industry is a
well organised, diligent and above all a caring industry that cares for
our society.

Manpower and Training

Since the launch of the “Build Up Publicity Campaign” in mid
2011, the number of registered construction workers by end 2013
has increased to about 18%. While the average age of registered
construction workers is about 46, for the newly registered
construction workers in 2012 it was 40 and in 2013, 38 years of age,
reflecting that more young people have been attracted to join the
industry. In 2013, about 5,500 trainees have joined various courses
organised by the CIC that leads towards them qualifying as semi-
skilled workers.

With the manpower challenges coupled with an ageing workforce
and skills mismatch, the tight manpower situation in the industry
remains a major area of concern. Although by the end of 2013
we would have about 322,000 registered construction workers,
nevertheless it remains a challenge for the industry to recruit and
retain skilled workers.

In 2013, the Construction Workers Registration Authority (CWRA)
amalgamated with the CIC. The CIC is now the sole authority
responsible for the registration of construction workers in Hong
Kong. The rationale behind this development was that organisational
streamlining would improve operational efficiencies while
providing users with a much enhanced service. In line with this, the
Construction Workers Registration Board (CWRB) was established
under the purview of the CIC with the task of administering workers’
registration.
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Chairman’s Message

Image Building

We continue to adopt a multi-pronged approach to attract new
entrants to join the industry by promoting a positive and progressive
image of the construction industry. Major initiatives include
production of the Dreams Come True TV drama, introducing the Build
Up Ambassadors scheme, as well as displaying of selected trade and
industry posters in key locations promulgating the true aspects of our
industry.

From the perspective of a caring and safety culture philosophy,
the CIC introduced measures to improve site tidiness, provision
of additional welfare facilities on site, the stepping up of safety
training for workers, and the promotion and publicity of site safety
to all facets of the industry. These efforts have helped to counter
the misconceived perception that the construction industry is dirty,
dangerous, demanding and disorganised, the “4Ds"” those people
associate the industry with.

Preparations are under way to open the first CIC Service Centre in the
first quarter of 2014 which will mark a milestone for the CIC, thus
making our services more accessible to the public.

Building Our Future

Alongside these three core areas, the CIC as the industry’s
coordinating body, is committed to encouraging the adoption of new
technologies and practices with the goal of making the industry more
sustainable and productive going forward.

With the emphasis on the environment in our society nowadays,
the CIC has established sustainable building practices towards the
promotion of environmental protection and sustainable development
in the industry. Through the organisation of the Sustainable Building
2013 Hong Kong Regional Conference (SB13HK) with the Hong Kong
Green Building Council in September, an important event to empower
industry practitioners with the latest developments in sustainable
building while at the same time gauge how other countries are
tackling the same issues we face in Hong Kong to ascertain how
matters can be improved for the betterment of mankind.
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During SB13HK the CIC announced the launch of the “Carbon
Labelling Scheme for construction materials”. It is the first dedicated
comparison-based labelling scheme for differentiating the carbon
content of construction materials in the market, a first of its kind to
be launched in Hong Kong.

Productivity and Technology

Hong Kong’s construction industry is at a stage of transformation
where all of us, especially those at management, must look at how
we can work differently to achieve a breakthrough in productivity and
competitiveness. With the tight manpower situation, it is important
that we harness the potential of new technologies and business
practices to replace labour intensive work while at the same time
creating other skilled positions within the industry. We should be
evolving into a more efficient, highly trained workforce with skills that
are transferable around the world.

The CIC Conference 2013 held on 29 November, “Construction
Innovation: Productivity and Technology”, attracted a record number
of delegates and was well received by all stakeholders.

In consultation with industry stakeholders, the CIC in 2013 developed
a strategic roadmap for the adoption of BIM within the Hong
Kong environment. It is anticipated more events, workshops and
competitions will be organised in 2014 to project the value of the
importance of technology and on this basis we have designated 2014
as “Year of BIM".

Through collaboration with international industry bodies to share
knowledge and experience in areas of mutual interest, in October the
CIC and the China Construction Industry Association (CCIA) signed a
groundbreaking Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) to enhance
co-operation between the two industry bodies with the view to create
new construction-related opportunities. During the CIC Conference
2013 in November the CIC also signed a MoU with Constructing
Excellence of the United Kingdom.
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Chairman’s Message

Good Governance

As a statutory body, the CIC values highly a culture of transparency
and good corporate governance. We are entrusted by our industry
stakeholders to uphold rigorous standards and, as the representative
industry body it is beholden on us to lead by example.

The dedication of our Council members was duly recognised through
the awarding of Directors of the Year Awards from the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. This was a great honour for us. The Award
recognised the work of the CIC in setting up systems and procedures
that at the end of the day provide greater accountability. We believe
our continual commitment to excel in corporate governance shall
benefit not only the CIC, but more broadly the construction industry
at large.

Future Direction

The CIC held its first Council members’ retreat in November 2013 to
take stock of what we have done so far with the view of formulating
short, medium and long-term strategies to tackle the challenges
ahead. Based on the fruitful discussions held during the retreat, 2014
will be another busy year for the CIC as we recalibrate our focus on
the most pressing issues facing the industry and continue to respond
to the needs of our industry stakeholders.

Imminent actions arising from the retreat will be a restructure of the
CIC committees and the hiring of an external consultant to prepare a
blue print for the Hong Kong construction industry going forward.
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Conclusion

With increasing roles and responsibilities to meet the demands of
the industry, to serve our industry stakeholders and to meet our
obligation to be a platform for communication for the industry and
with the Government, it falls upon us to strive for excellence and
continual improvement, of which | am confident we will endeavour to
achieve.

Finally, let me thank my fellow Council members, the CIC colleagues,
boards and committees for your invaluable efforts throughout 2013.
For the coming year, we are anticipating further challenges to meet
the expectations of our stakeholders in moving the whole industry
forward.
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Executive Director’s Report

HATRERS

It is a challenging time for Hong Kong’s construction
industry but by remaining true to our vision and by
continuing to work in a collaborative spirit we will be
able to face those challenges together.
HERMBAR—8 - HBERN  EFFREXLEER
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Executive Director’s Report

The work and achievements of the Construction Industry Council in
2013 reflected the growing roles and responsibilities of the Council,
and the range of issues facing our industry stakeholders. These
achievements are detailed in this annual report and | am delighted to
present below some operational issues.

Research and Innovation

Research and innovation are crucial for the ongoing development of
the local construction industry. The CIC provides funding support for
research projects of a practical nature that add value to our industry.
To date, around HK$12 million has been granted for 11 research
projects, covering areas such as productivity, construction technology,
sustainability, and site safety.

In terms of improving productivity, the CIC accepted the
recommendations of the Phase One Study Report on Strategic
Implementation of Prefabrication and Modular Construction. A
further in-depth study on the establishment of a local prefabrication
yard and its potential utilisation will be conducted in 2014.

Another important research initiative to gauge the performance
of the industry in Hong Kong was the publication of the first
construction industry performance report in April 2013, measuring
the key performance indicators (KPI) of the construction industry in
terms of productivity, health and safety, and manpower for the years
2001-2011. With such information, one is able to predict future
trends going forward.

Building Capability and Capacity

To better assess the future manpower situation, the CIC launched
a construction manpower study in 2008. In 2013 we updated the
study for construction workers, and kicked start the updating for
technicians, supervisors and professionals. To keep the data current,
future updates on each group will be made on a yearly basis.
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With the predictions firmly established, the CIC invested a large
amount of resources into increasing training places, enhancing
the skills of workers, and attracting new recruits. New cooperative
training schemes were launched in 2013. These included the
Subcontractor Cooperative Training Scheme (SCTS), Plumbing
Contractor Cooperative Training Scheme (PCTS), and Contractor
Cooperative Training Scheme — Electrical and Mechanical (E&M)
Trades (CCTS — E&M) with training allowance given out to trainees
through the mode of “first-hire-then-train” to encourage new
entrants to stay in the industry. To enhance the productivity of
graduate trainees, an On-the-job Training Subsidy Scheme (OJTS) for
employers of Enhanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme
(ECMTS) graduates was introduced. A training allowance for first
year E&M students of the Diploma on the Vocational Education (DVE)
Programme offered by the Vocational Training Council (VTC) was also
introduced.

Extensive promotional activities to attract new blood to join different
full-time training courses were carried out and these included an
advertising campaign comprising a television commercial, print
advertisements and newspaper advertorials, advertisements on
buses, MTR, outdoor mega billboards and the internet. A series of
roving exhibitions highlighting the training schemes were also held in
densely populated districts across Hong Kong.

Attracting New Talent

With the aim of attracting and enhancing manpower, particularly
new blood, the CIC organised an educational programme with the
theme “Building Your Life” in March 2013. The one-day programme
offered students from the University of Hong Kong an extraordinary
opportunity to learn about the different trades and real-life aspects of
the construction industry.

In 2013 we launched the CIC liberal studies kit for secondary schools
to introduce both students and teachers about the Hong Kong
construction industry and to encourage critical thinking. Through
a better understanding of the important role of the construction
industry in Hong Kong, it is hoped that more young people may
consider a career in the sector.

To establish role models for others to look upon, a campaign to
launch the first batch of Build Up Ambassadors took place in
November 2013. Some of the Build Up Ambassadors are practitioners
with years of experience while others are trainees who are still
undergoing training or have just completed their course with the CIC.
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Executive Director’s Report

Striving for Excellence

Through their dedicated efforts, the CIC's committees produced
a range of publications to inform stakeholders of best industry
practices. With developing a safety culture as a priority, the
Committee on Construction Site Safety produced three technical
guidelines, namely (a) Site Safety Measures for Working in Hot
Weather, (b) Fabrication of Reinforcement Cages of Bored Piles, and (c)
Safety of Lift Shaft Works (Volume 3 — Throughout the Occupation
Stage of Building), and five safety alerts, relating to Safe Use of
Mobile Metal Scaffolds for Repair, Maintenance, Alteration and
Addition (RMAA) Works, Adoption of Method Statements on Sites,
Avoid Using Ladders for Working at Height in RMAA Works, Safe Use
of Lifting Appliances and Lifting Gear, and Excavation Works in the
Vicinity of Underground Utilities — Buried Gas Pipes and Cables.

The Committee on Procurement developed a Procurement Fact Sheet
on the Competition Ordinance introducing the Competition Ordinance
(Cap. 619) and its potential implications that stakeholders need to be
aware of as well as a set of procurement alerts entitled Recent Issues
of Concern on Tendering of Construction Contracts to highlight good
practices in relation to the procurement of construction contracts.

To facilitate the adoption of alternative dispute resolution, the
Committee on Subcontracting issued Reference Materials for
Application of Dispute Resolution in Construction Contracts in
early 2013 setting out rules and procedures in relation to the five
dispute resolution mechanisms which the industry may consider
when preventing or resolving their potential disputes or differences
(mediation, adjudication, independent expert certifier review, expert
determination, and short form arbitration).

The Committee on Environment and Technology published the Report
on Research on River Sand Substitutes for Concrete Production and
Cement Sand Mortar Production (Phase One) in April 2013 suggesting
that “manufactured sand” is the most viable substitute. The Phase
Two Research Study, with an aim to draft a set of specifications for
river sand substitutes for practical use, commenced in August 2013.
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Enhancing Communications

It is most important that we effectively communicate our work and
activities to industry stakeholders and the wider general public. The
activities of the CIC and the standing committees were reported in
the quarterly CIC Newsletter and bi-monthly C/C Snapshots. A more
strategic approach to social media was adopted in 2013 and we
now utilise Facebook, Twitter, YouTube and Instagram as part of our
communications mix. Whilst continuing to engage with the media
through regular interviews, an Executive Director’s Blog was added to
the CIC's website in 2013 as a forum for topical issues.

We treasure our dialogue with our stakeholders so as to better
understand their needs and to explain the initiatives of the Council.
The CIC also received several visiting delegations during the year to
exchange knowledge and experiences.

To encourage the public to take a fresh look at the industry, we held
our first photo competition in 2013, calling for snapshots of Hong
Kong's construction industry and hardworking skilled workforce. The
competition was very well received with 350 entries and more than
3,800 votes from the public in selecting the most popular photo.

Improving Our Service

We are constantly reviewing the delivery of CIC services to identify
areas of improvement. The Voluntary Subcontractor Registration
Scheme, first introduced in 2003, was renamed the Subcontractor
Registration Scheme from 1 January 2013 to enhance the integrity
of registered subcontractors and invite new entrants to the
subcontracting industry.

To guide its future development, a Construction Industry Resource
Centre Management Committee was set up to ensure the ongoing
sustainable development of the Construction Industry Resource
Centre as a one-stop educational, promotional and information hub
for the industry.

We also took initiatives to improve key business processes so that
the organisation is able to cope with the changing environment.
In 2013, the review of procurement processes was completed and
recommendations to enhance the effectiveness and efficiency of the
business processes and the departmental organisation structure were
implemented.
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Executive Director’s Report

Promoting Fairness

A Competition Law cum Security of Payment Forum was held in
May 2013. The competition law session of the forum informed
stakeholders, in particular small and medium-sized enterprises, of
the key provisions of the Competition Ordinance that relate to the
construction industry together with some practical steps to take when
the new legislation become operative.

Concerns have been expressed in the local construction industry over
delays in making payments and the time for disputes to be resolved.
The Hong Kong Government together with the CIC conducted a
survey in 2011 to assess the situation with the view of ascertaining
whether there is a need for security of payment legislation to facilitate
timely payment for work done and services provided by contractors,
subcontractors, consultants and suppliers. During 2013, constructive
work was done towards drafting legislative proposals for further
industry consultation.

ZCB

The CIC’s zero carbon building project, ZCB, has proven to be popular
with both the public and the industry, winning many prestigious
awards for its innovation and creativity. ZCB was opened to the
public on 5 January 2013 and by the end of the year, it had received
more than 18,000 visitors and 46 delegations. It has been actively
organising promotional events to raise the awareness of low carbon
living within the local community.

The ZCB Ambassador Scheme, launched in 2013, received an
overwhelming response recruiting 958 Student Ambassadors who,
after training, will help spread ZCB's low carbon message to friends,
families, and the wider community.

Caring Culture

We take our corporate social responsibilities seriously. Our staff,
together with CIC members and trainees, had a fruitful year giving
back to society through diverse events and activities from blood
donation to refurbishing homes of the needy with environmentally
friendly materials. In March 2013, CIC members, industry stakeholders
and staff joined the charitable racing competition in the Construction
Industry Sports Day cum Charity Fun Day held by the CIC, raising
HK$50,000 for the Construction Charity Fund.
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Ten talented young people who had excelled in their studies
were recognised under the “Scholarships for the Family Members
of Registered Construction Workers” provided by the CIC. The
scholarships acknowledge the efforts of hard working parents, who
work in the construction industry, in raising their children, and the
dedication of these young people to their studies.

Outlook for 2014

The CIC is making an important contribution to Hong Kong's
sustainable future in developing both our industry and our
community. It is a challenging time for Hong Kong's construction
industry but by remaining true to our vision and by continuing to
work in a collaborative spirit we will be able to face those challenges
together.

Ir TO Wing, Christopher
PREE Ti2ED

BEEEE HITRE
Executive Director, Construction Industry Council
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Membership of CIC

I%%%EEE

1

Chairman, Construction Industry Council
BREEBRE IR

Ir LEE Shing-see

At TIZAD

Chairman, Committee on Administration and Finance
THRHOBZEEE £/E (2014F1 A 31 A1)
TERUBEEZEE £/E (2014F2A1HE)

2

Ir CHAN Siu-hung
BRARLE TH2RM

3

Mr. CHAN Yiu-tung, Anthony
BRIBIR St

a4

Mr. CHEUNG Hau-wai

RER SEE

Chairman, Committee on Construction Site
Safety (until 31 January 2014)
T#Z2EEE £F (2014F 1831 Hik)

Chairman, Committee on Construction Safety
(since 1 February 2014)

BELZLEEZEE £/E (2014F2A1HE)
5

Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul

R A

Chairman, Construction Workers Registration Board
BEXTAZIMEES £E

6

Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen

FENEIE B = AD

(New member since 1 February 2014)
(20142 F 1 AEBMAMFZEEAE)
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7
Mr. MAK Tak-ching
BB kA

8
Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence

e £t

9

Ms. Melissa Kaye PANG

THEfE Lt

(New member since 1 February 2014)
(2014 F2F 1 HEMAWFZEKE)

10

Ir PANG Yat-bond, Derrick

Z—F TR

Chairman, Construction Industry Training Board
BEEIRESE FFE



1

Mr. AU Choi-kai

REE A

Director of Buildings (until 28 March 2014)

(succeeded by Mr. HUI Siu-wai from
29 March 2014)

EFEER (2014F3H28H1E)
(2014 % 3 A 29 A#BHFFDELEEE)

12
Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan
RIS TI2AD

13

Ir CHEW Tai-chong

FXAE Ti2AM

Chairman, Committee on Procurement
(until 31 January 2014)

HEZSE £/E (20141831 H1E)
Chairman, Committee on Procurement and
Subcontracting (since 1 February 2014)
FEBRIBSHESZESE £

(20144 2A1AE)

14

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

BB EE

15

Mr. LAl Chi-wah

16

Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, Christopher
REE K

Chairman, Committee on Productivity and
Research (since 1 February 2014)
HEIRNAREEZEE £E
(2014F2H1H%8)

|

QW

17

Prof. WONG Sze-chun
EAE IR

Convenor, Objections Board
(since 1 February 2014)
BEERHEREZES BEA
(20142 F1H#)

18

Mr. WU Shek-chun, Wilfred
SPEE 4

(New member since 1 February 2014)
(20142 F 1 HEMAWFHERE)
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Membership of CIC

19

Mr. CHAN Kwok-yin, Andrew
PREJEE St4

(New member since 1 February 2014)
(2014 F 2B 1 HEMAWIZEEKE)
20

Ir Prof. CHU Pui-kwan, Reuben
Ao HIR TIRAD

21

Ms. FUNG Yin-suen, Ada

BEE X+

Representing Permanent Secretary for
Transport and Housing (Housing)

REREBREEBEANER (BE)

22
Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert
MREE £4&

23

Ir Kevin POOLE

E s LiZAD

Chairman, Committee on Environment and
Technology (until 31 January 2014)
RERBNESSE £F (2014F 1831 H1E)
Chairman, Committee on Environment,
Innovation and Technology (since 1 February
2014)

RIE  AIFREINEEZESE % (2014 F
2H18%)
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24

Ir WAI Chi-sing

A Ti2AD

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)

BRAEEAWER (TH)

25
Mr. WONG Chik-wing, Mike
mIER K&

Chairman, Committee on Subcontracting
(until 31 January 2014)

IBHPHESE F/F (2014F 1531 ALE)



Retired Members

HEXE

(until 31 January 2014)
(20141 A31H1E)

Ms. CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa
BE5E Z+

Il
Mr. KWAN Yuk-choi, James
BMEM k4%

m
Sr WONG Bay
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v
Mr. YU Wai-wai
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About the Construction Industry Council

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) was formed on 1 February
2007 under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance (Cap. 587).
The CIC consists of a chairman and 24 members representing various
sectors of the industry including employers, professionals, academics,
contractors, workers, independent persons and Government officials.

The main functions of CIC are to forge consensus on long-term
strategic issues, convey the industry’s needs and aspirations to
Government, as well as provide a communication channel for
Government to solicit advice on all construction-related matters.

To learn more about the CIC, please visit www.hkcic.org.

CIC Functions (up to 31 December 2013)

Under Section 5 of the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance, the CIC has the following functions:

1. to advise and make recommendations to the Government on
strategic matters, major policies and legislative proposals, that
may affect or are connected with the construction industry, and
on matters of concern to the construction industry;

2. to reflect to the Government the construction industry’s needs
and aspirations;

3. to elevate the quality and competitiveness of the construction
industry by promoting the ongoing development and
improvement of the industry;
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Council Profile

10.

11.

to uphold professionalism and integrity within the construction
industry by promoting self-regulation, formulating codes of
conduct and enforcing such codes;

to improve the performance of persons connected with the
construction industry through establishing or administering
registration schemes or rating schemes;

to advance the skills of personnel in the construction industry
through planning, promotion, supervision, provision or

coordination of training courses or programmes;

to encourage research activities and the use of innovative
techniques and to establish or promote the establishment of
standards for the construction industry;

to promote good practices in the construction industry in
relation to dispute resolution, environmental protection,
multi-layer subcontracting, occupational safety and health,
procurement methods, project management and supervision,
sustainable construction and other areas conducive to improving
construction quality;

to enhance the cohesiveness of the construction industry by
promoting harmonious labour relations and the observance
of statutory requirements relating to employment, and by
facilitating communication among various sectors of the
industry;

to serve as a resource centre for the sharing of knowledge and
experience within the construction industry;

to assess improvements made by the construction industry
through the compilation of performance indicators;
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12.

13.

14.

to make recommendations with respect to the rate of the levy
imposed under this Ordinance;

to conduct or finance educational, publicity, research or
other programmes relating to occupational safety and health,
environmental protection or sustainable development in the
construction industry; and

to perform any other functions relevant to the construction
industry, including those functions conferred or imposed on it by
or under this Ordinance, the Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance (Cap 583) or any other enactment.

Under Section 6 of the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance, the supplementary functions of the CIC are:

1.

to provide training courses for the construction industry;

to establish and maintain industrial training centres for the
construction industry;

to assist, including by the provision of financial assistance, in
the placement of persons who have completed training courses
provided for the construction industry; and

to assess the standards of skills achieved by any person in any
kind of work involving or in connection with the construction
industry, to conduct examinations and tests, to issue or award
certificates of attendance or competence, and to establish the
standards to be achieved in respect of any such work.
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]‘he Council and Its Committees
2EShHEBNZES

Construction
Industry Council

BEXRT
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Committee on Administration and Finance
TBRBEES

Committee on Construction Site Safety
THZEEER

Committee on Environment and Technology
RERRINEES

Committee on Procurement
REBEES

Objections Board
EERHEEZES

Construction Industry Training Board
REXIIREES

Construction Workers Registration Board
REETASMEZEES

Hong Kong Green Building Council
ERROEERS

Zero Carbon Building Limited
ZAMERAR




Task Force on Review of Major Construction Method Statements

FERIARRAEE M -
Task Group on Implementation of

| Informal Task Force on Site Safety Incidents Heat Stress Action Plan

TihREFHFEXNEEPE HITERITE RN TIE/VA
| Task Force on Site Safety Training

IR 2INRESFNE Task Group on Preventing Fall

Task Force on Site Housekeepin Acddents through Building Design
| I#EZESENE o TR SRS T BN

E THvE

| Task Force on Working in Hot Weather

RESEITEEENE Task Group on Preventing Fall
| Task Force on Work Safety of Repair, Maintenance, Alterations and Additions (RMAA) Sites Accidents in g Buildings

@5 RE - MRRMBEIHZ THER2EEME R

Task Force on Site Safety of Working in Lift Shaft
FEETENTIZ2EE/VE Task Group on Site Safety of

o - : P f Working in Lift Shaft
Task Force on the Application of Mediation on Construction Injuries Dispute .
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Task Group on the Selection of
Consultants
EUREM AR TIENVE

Task Group on the Selection of
Contractors

TRAEHIIE A

Task Group on NEC3
Collaborative Contracts

MIRARE=RTENE

Task Force on Adoption of Dispute Resolution Advisor System in Subcontract
HABENRARATEREREEEA
Working Group on the Review of the Implementation of the Dispute Resolution Mechanism

T REBRFEHNERTENM

Task Force on Standard Contract Provisions for Domestic Subcontracts

I

HENBSNEESHRREE M

Task Force on Enhancements to Subcontractor Registration Scheme

RASOEEMEESE M

Management Committee of Subcontractor Registration Scheme

S EEEMEIEEEESE

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 2 29



Organisation Chart
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Senior
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Mr. CHEUNG Yuk-lung
RERE SEAE
Senior Manager — Development & Support

BRR XS RASIE

2

Ir CHU Yin-lin

RIEF TI2RD

Senior Manager — Construction Training
BEERAMIZ N SRR

3

Ms. IP Wai, Cheryl

BE a+

Senior Manager — Human Resources &
Administration

ADERR BB RAEE

r Management
H

AR

Ms. LEE Oi-yen

BBzt

Senior Manager — Internal Audit

R EREF =T = ARAEEE

5

Mr. LEUNG Siu-tin, Andrew

RNK KE

Senior Manager — Information Technology

BB S ARAEE
6
Ir LEUNG Wai-hung, Alex
R{E1E TI2AM

Depuz‘y D/rector — Tra/'n/ng and Development

(Acz‘/ng) D/rector — Workers Registration
TAEMEZRE
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7

Dr. LI Guiyi
FER Bt
Director — ZCB
T K A B

8

Ir LIU Tat-chiu, Davis

IEHE Ti2H

Senior Manager — Workers Registration
T A S RAEE

9
Ms TAM Oi-kam, Katherine
EE&\ ﬁj:

Senior Manager — Finance

B B AR A



10

Ir TO Wing, Christopher

PRLE TH2AM

Executive Director

HITHEES

1

Dr. TONG Kin-lun, Thomas

e Bt

Chief Research Consultant — Construction
Manpower Research

BEFEA DR EETIRER
12

Ir WONG Chi-lap

EHY TI2AD

Senior Manager — Construction Trade Testing
BEXTEAASREE

13

Mr. WONG Chung-yan, Ivan
FEBE K&

Senior Manager — Council Services
HEEHEREE

14

Mr. WONG Doon-yee, Charles
BHE KL

Director — Training and Development
AR R
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Governance

The Chairman and the 24 members of the CIC are appointed by
the Secretary for Development. Members come from various sectors
of the industry including employers, professionals, contractors,
subcontractors, materials or equipment suppliers, training institutes,
academic institutions, trade unions, independent persons and

government officials.

The Council has established five committees to enhance the
performance of its functions. Together with the five statutory boards
established under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance
(Cap. 587) and the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance
(Cap. 583), they set the strategic direction as well as oversee the
operations of the CIC. The boards and committees further establish
subcommittees and task forces to focus on specialised tasks and
industry issues.

The Council provides strategic leadership and guidance as well as
sets the overall direction for the CIC to pursue. It also monitors the
organisational and managerial performance.

The Council upholds an open, transparent and accountable
environment such that industry-wide issues and concerns can be
thoroughly deliberated. Industry expertise will be invited to offer
professional advice on the topics discussed. All these mechanisms
allow the CIC to forge consensus on industry-wide issues with the
ultimate aim to achieve excellence in the construction industry of
Hong Kong.

In 2013, the Council strategically pursued the following:

e The Council achieved a milestone by leading the CIC to
successfully and smoothly amalgamate with the then
Construction Workers Registration Authority. This marked a new
era for the CIC on becoming the single statutory body for the
Hong Kong construction industry;

e  Safety remained the top priority for the construction industry
with “zero accident” as the goal. The Council fully supported
the Construction Safety Week initiative, co-organised with the
Development Bureau. Bringing together efforts from developers,
contractors, subcontractors and workers, the safety message was
widely spread in the community;
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Corporate Governance Report

e  The Council demonstrated its commitment to sustainability in
supporting the Sustainable Building Conference 2013 (SB13) and
the Hong Kong Green Building Week;

e The Council held its first Council members retreat to evaluate
the strategy of the CIC and to look ahead to formulate short,
medium and long-term strategies to tackle the challenges ahead;
and

° The Council also revamped the committee structure, to become
effective from 2014, to better reflect the evolving scope of work
of the CIC as well as the industry’s aspirations and challenges.

For membership, terms of reference and reports from each committee
and board, please refer to the Committee Reports (P. 56).

New Members

Briefings were arranged for all new Council members, while include
an orientation session with the senior management, and information
about the CIC organisation, governance structure and corporate
information. All new members are to sign the Code of Conduct
for Members which details the stipulations about compliance with
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201), policies around
acceptance of advantages, conflicts of interest, and the use of
proprietary and confidential information.

Council, Board and Committee Meetings

Annually, the Council holds bi-monthly meetings whereas the
committees, the Construction Industry Training Board (CITB) and
the Construction Workers Registration Board (CWRB) meet at least
quarterly (except for the Objections Board, the Construction Workers
Qualifications Board, and the Construction Workers Review Board
which meet when needs arise). The meeting schedule is set at the
beginning of each year to facilitate members to reserve time to
attend.
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During 2013, meeting attendance of the members was as follows:

Council Members

HEHE

Ir LEE Shing-see (Chairman)

Mr. AU Choi-kai

Ir Dr. CHAN Ka-ching, Andrew*
Ir CHAN Siu-hung

Ir CHAN Sau-kit, Allan

Mr. CHAN Yiu-tung, Anthony
Ms. CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa
Mr. CHEUNG Hau-wai

Ir CHEW Tai-chong

Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul

Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

Ir Prof. CHU Pui-kwan, Reuben
Prof. KO Jan-ming*

Mr. KWAN Yuk-choi, James
Mr. LAI Chi-wah

Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert
Mr. LAM Wo-hei*

Prof. LEUNG Kin-ying, Christopher
Mr. MAK Tak-ching

Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence

Ir PANG Yat-bond, Derrick

Mr. Duncan Warren PESCODA
Ir Kevin POOLE

Ir WAI Chi-sing”

Sr WONG Bay

Mr. WONG Chik-wing, Mike
Prof. WONG Sze-chun

Ir WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad *
Mr. YU Wai-wai

AL TR (2E)

REE KL

BREIE B+ Ti2AM

BREATE TH2AD
BRIEZN TH2AM
BRIBR 4
a2+
RER 4
AXRE ITiEE0
BRI LA
RS 4

R 2R TAZEM

=SEH 5
HMEM k&
BE L
WERE &4
PRANEE S04 *
REE B
BEF i4
mEnEE LA
¥—8 T2k
BEm LEA
Emk L2
EEAK Ti2R0A
= bR
EEL KL
i IR
BAME TI2AD*
RER %4

Council

EL i

6/6
6/6

5/6
6/6
6/6
1/6
6/6
5/6
5/6
6/6
5/6

4/6
6/6
5/6

5/6
4/6
5/6
5/6
6/6
5/6
6/6
6/6
5/6
6/6

3/6

4/8

T A2013FFeNEEEKED

w48

Meeting Attendance
iR AR 8%

Committees

Z8%8

Css

3/4
2/4

2/4
3/4

474 - -
11 - -
3/4 2/4 -
- 474 -
13 2/4 3/3
- - 24
1/4 - 0/4
- 474 -
- 474 474
- - 3/4
13 1/4 -
11 - -
1/4 - -
3/3 - -
11 - -
3/4 - -
- - 474
- - 23
- 3/4 -
3/4 2/4 -
- - 4/4
- - 474
23 -
- - 0/1
11 - 1/4
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Meeting Meeting
CITB Members Attendance CITB Members Attendance
BEEIIREZESHE e A2 6% REXIREZEEHE HE A2 8%
Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy (Chairman)+ 6/6 Mr. MAK Tak-ching 0/6
m=oOR TRA (F/F) + BIEIE %4
Ir HO Ngai-leung, Albert 4/6 Mr. NG Kwok-kwan 5/6
3R R TH2AM REE 4
Ms. HUNG Yee-man 2/6 Ir PANG Yat-bond, Derrick 5/6
AN Z+ Z—F Ti2Am
Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen 2/6 Mr. SZE Kyran 3/6
FETBIE A= AM e vt
Mr. LAM Kai-chung, Albert# 171 Ir SYNN Raymond-cheung 4/6
RUR FoE# HEIKFR TH2AM
Mr. LI Chi-leung 6/6 Prof. TAM Chi-ming 0/6
TF5m k4 B R
Mr. LOK Kwei-sang, Tandy 6/6 Mr. TSE Chun-yuen 6/6
BRZEAE A ARIR 754
Ms. LUI Kit-yuk, Grace/# 5/5

BE2E Lt M

Meeting Meeting
CWRB Members Attendance CWRB Members Attendance
BEXTAZMEESHE i FE A2 8% BEXTAZMEEERE HELHE
Mr. CHONG Kit-lit, Paul (Chairman) 717 Ir LAM Tin-sing, Enoch” 717
B L4 (F/F) MRE TEAA
Mr. CHAN Chi-hin 717 Mr. LEUNG Siu-man # 4/5
PRINE &4 RO T #
Ir CHAN Loong, Geoffrey 5/7 Ir LEE Hung-kwong, Joseph 4/7
PR B TiZAM e TIRAD
Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu 3/7 Mr. LI Chi-leung 4/7
[EHS £ FF5w L
Ir CHUI Wai-sing 5/7 Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence 6/7
R T2A m¥E T4
Mr. FU Chin-shing, Ivan 6/7 Mr. PANG Long 4/7
FERAX JZEERD ¥ B %4
Dr. HO Hok-keung, Paul 6/7 Mr. WONG Siu-han, Rex 6/7
fa] ok H+ FAME K&
Mr. HO Wai-wah 6/7 Ms. YU Po-mei, Clarice # 2/2
fEE KL REXE KL #
Ir KWAN Po-jen, Helen 7/7 Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo 6/7
HEL TiZf RiHE TIZAM
Dr. KUANG Jun-shang 4/7 Mr. YU Wai-wai 3/7
BER Bt RER K&
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*  Members retired on 31 January 2013

+ Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy also attended the Com-ANF meetings in
the capacity of CITB Chairman

A Represented by member’s designated representative(s) in designated
meetings

#  Ms. LUl Kit-yuk, Grace retired as a CITB member on 6 December
2013 and was succeeded by Mr. LAM Kai-chung, Albert. Mr. LEUNG
Siu-man retired as a CWRB member on 30 August 2013 and was
succeeded by Ms. YU Po-mei, Clarice.

Meeting Proceedings

Meeting notices are issued to members at least two weeks
before the meeting. Members are provided with the meeting’s
detailed information one week before the meeting under normal
circumstances. Members are required to declare any conflict of
interest before discussion on the concerned agenda item. The
declaration and the actions taken, such as a member refraining
from participating in the discussion of the concerned agenda item,
will be documented in the minutes. Meeting minutes, attendance
of members and discussions of each agenda item, are circulated to
members for comment with the finalised approved version posted on
the CIC website (except the closed door sessions of the Council, the
Committee on Administration and Finance, and the Objections Board)
for the public’s perusal.

The management of the CIC attends the Council, board and
committee meetings to provide secretarial support. Where requested
by the members, the management of the CIC may present
information, explain the CIC policies and procedures, as well as
answer questions raised by members. The management of the CIC,
under the leadership of the Executive Director, will follow up on the
execution of the strategic direction set by members and report from
time to time.
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Corporate Governance Framework

EERRE

Standard of

thaviour
THEE

Reporting and
Communications
ERELEE ommitt %

: a“d \ts C ees

o“c\\

Vision =
To drive for unity and excellence of

the construction industry of Hong Kong
EAEAREYE R

Mission &
To strengthen the sustainability of
the construction industry in Hong Kong
by providing a communications platform,
striving for continuous improvement, increasing
awareness of health and safety,
as well as improving skills development.
RIRE B R E N AT RE RIS
—[@EETAE  wEBRRRZ2EH -
RARBEERE - IRTESE -

Organisation
Structure and
Business Processes
Corporate

Citizenship
TEAR

Risk Management
and Control
[E VB BB % BE
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Standard of Behaviour

The Code of Conduct for Staff is reviewed and updated annually.
All management staff should submit an annual declaration on
the understanding and compliance with the Code to the Human
Resources Department. New staff should acknowledge the Code of
Conduct in writing.

To reinforce staff awareness of the expected standard of behaviour
expected in the course of business, the CIC invited authorities to
conduct training to refresh staff knowledge. During the year, the CIC
invited the Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data, the
Equal Opportunities Commission and the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (ICAC) for such purposes. Certain sessions
were specifically for staff responsible for trade test invigilation,
staff recruitment, as well as training. Due to their frequent dealings
with third parties and the handling of a considerable amount of
personal data, those courses renewed their vigilance and integrity in
discharging their duties.

Organisation Structure and Business Processes

During the year, a new department, the Workers Registration
Secretariat was established as a result of the amalgamation with the
Construction Workers Registration Authority. The new department
is mainly responsible for secretarial support to CWRB, execution of
the delegated functions in relation to workers registration as well
as enforcement work of the CWRO. Please refer to the Organisation
Chart (P. 30).

TREE
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The expanded CIC employed more than 600 full-time employees as at
31 December 2013, with 63% of employees male and 37% female.
As an equal opportunities employer, employees of the CIC come from
diverse backgrounds, ranging from trade skills qualifications, civil
engineering, mechanical engineering, surveying, legal, mediation,
arbitration, accounting, to environmental specialists. The CIC strongly
encourages staff to continue enhancing their skill set and thus has a
Staff Development Scheme to subsidise staff to pursue further study.
In addition, the CIC has held the following courses during the year:

e Teaching skills for instructors;
e Occupational safety management course for instructors;
e Computer skills course for general staff;

e “How to Deal with Difficult Customers” workshop for frontline
staff; and
e “Assessment and Coaching” workshop for management staff

The average number of training hours per employee was 25.

The management took initiatives to energise the key business
processes so that the CIC is versatile enough to cope with the
changing environment. In 2013, consultants completed their review
on the procurement process. Recommendations to enhance the
effectiveness and efficiency of the business processes and the
departmental organisation structure to fulfill the expanded functions
of the department would be implemented accordingly.

Risk Management and Control

The CIC risk assessment methodology takes into account input
from different levels of the management. Throughout the process,
the risk appetite and concerns of the management are captured.
The final result reflects the relatively vulnerable areas of the CIC.
The management can then formulate risk mitigation measures and
deployment of resources to guard the CIC against the risks.

The risk-based audit approach was being adopted to prioritise internal
audit review projects. During the year, Internal Audit reviewed the
levy management, Contractor Cooperative Training Scheme, and
Subcontractor Registration Scheme. The review focused on the
compliance to the policies and procedures as well as any improvement
opportunities on the design of control.
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Internal Audit handled complaint cases to review whether the
concerned staff had diligently followed the CIC policies and
procedures. An independent panel, made up of third party experts
to offer impartial views and advice, was convened when necessary.
Internal Audit made recommendations to the management with an
aim to enhance the robustness of the internal control systems.

As a statutory organisation under the governance of the Prevention
of Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201), regular liaison with the ICAC
continued to enhance the CIC's immunity against potential corruption
risks. During the year, the ICAC initiated a review assignment on the
placement of trainees, which was due to be completed in early 2014.
The CIC would act on the ICAC recommendations accordingly.

External auditors independently carried out the statutory audits. No
non-audit work had been engaged during the year.

Reporting and Communications

As required by the CIC Ordinance, the CIC shall submit the report
on the activities of the Council, statement of accounts and auditor’s
report to the Secretary for Development within six months after the
end of its financial year. In addition, the CIC publishes information in
relation to trade tests, training and workers registration on the CIC
website to keep the public abreast of the work of the CIC.
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External Communications

The CIC has increased the channels it uses to communicate to
industry stakeholders and the public, including the following:

HIHNEE

HEHNT TREERGTERHERND
A

38

/\

e Report the CIC’s past events
and industry news
REZSNBEBFDHMITERAN
Update stakeholders on the
ongoing tasks of the CIC
AFFDBERERS EETHIE

Outreach to government

e Executive Director
updates the public on
the CIC developments
and industry issues
PITHRERAREMRE
EREANTAERM
Fm

e Instant platform
to exchange ideas
with the public
HARZRERD
HIEEE

e Instant updates on
the latest events of

the CIC
B BTG &
Bl

departments, non-governmental
organisations, Chamber of
Commerce, professional
institutes, universities, individual
subscribers

BEREBUTERPT - FEERAAEA - 7
g BXZEEg . KERBIFIH
AL

e Introduce
topical issues
relevant to the

construction
industry
NRREESE
EPIEERR

—/
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Exchanges with Local and Overseas Delegations

During the year, the CIC has visited or received delegations from the
following:

e Constructing Excellence, United Kingdom
e  Construction Industry Council, United Kingdom

e Construction Industry Group — The British Chamber of
Commerce in Hong Kong

e Construction Scotland Leadership Group, United Kingdom

e Hong Kong Construction Industry Employees’ General Union [l

e Jiangsu Provincial Association of Construction Safety and
Equipment Management, People’s Republic of China B

. Labour Affairs Bureau, Macao SAR H

e National Federation of Chinese Construction Workers’ Union

e Shenzhen Government Official Delegation, People’s Republic of China
e The Association of Consulting Engineers of Hong Kong [

Through these exchanges, the CIC presented the Hong Kong practices
and industry knowledge, provided updates on the CIC’s initiatives, as

well as shared specialised experience from counterparts.
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e  HME Constructing Excellence

o HREREXEE

e  HE[E Construction Scotland
Leadership Group
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Internal Communications

The CIC values its staff, located at 15 offices and training centres
across Hong Kong. Defined communication channels allow for a free
flow of information across all the CIC locations to keep all staff better
informed. Various means as summarised below are developed:

Designated
email and
hotlines
EEEHR
Executive Director / BB

Director Gatherings
BITHE  BESR

‘ . Scheduled

NEREE

AeHE s ERERMEIIPLONET
B+AER - ZERETRBAREMEH
ERURENERFEHARY  BERET
R - BT

Townhall
meetings and
departmental

meetings

ETAER
HBrIEEH

office visits

of Staff Relations Team
ETEARATCHRAZHRS

The internal newsletter CIC Insight records the

HERNEEA (B ) Lk
T#E

latest corporate developments, staff movements, e i = EEMERFER BT
and relevant information among staff. The CIC’s “@*ﬂwhelcs,lnsighti XL HEBREMETHEE - #

management supports open and frank exchanges
among staff.

CEEEZBMEIZHEA
AP PREI SR
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Corporate Citizenship

TEIR

The CIC staff, together with members and trainees, had a fruitful year FHE&KE - ETMEEEFAKRFNZIE

giving back to society through diverse events and activities.

EBALGERE

The CIC participated in the following events in 2013 held by FEER2013FLHETUTEEREHNQ

charitable organisations:

Charitable Organisation

HEHE

HES -

Community Chest of Hong Kong

Habitat for Humanity China
CARE

Hong Kong Red Cross
BERLt+TE

Medecins Sans Frontieres (MSF)

MTR Corporation Limited
EBEEERAR
Oxfam Hong Kong
Live

ORBIS Hong Kong
EERILAT

Skip Lunch Day
nEfTE [T ’RA

Green Day

N &A=

Charity Mooncake Sale

N ABBEHR MK

Love Teeth Day

RmE I H

Green Joyful Home for Disabled Project
1%L E IR

Blood Donation

Bim

Pass-it-On

BOMEERITE

MSF Day

ERAEEH

MTR Hong Kong Race Walking
BEEBRLE

Oxfam Rice Sale

LAEE

World Sight Day
HARARER
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Key highlights: EE G

e Two CIC instructors led 15 CIC trainees in the Habitat for o EEMUGAMEEISHZEELHC
Humanity China’s “Green Joyful Home for Disabled Project” to ARBH [HEtEEER] S -
help a needy family to refurbish their home with environmentally FRRREVAIDRERERE
friendly materials

e Instructors and trainees of CIC Sheung Shui Training Centre and o EEFEZE LKIKFP O REESEZ
CIC Kowloon Bay Training Centre participated in the MTR Hong GBI LR ERAMES 200
Kong Race Walking on 14 October 2013. Both centres shared MR2013F 10 A 14 B 8 9 18 18 5
the Champion, First runner-up and Second runner-up in the Boys B RRERSHEESFERS
Team of Inter-School Race Walking Team Competition o D REE

e 162 CIC staff and trainees donated blood in an event held by the o 162HZEE LI REBELNEBL T
Hong Kong Red Cross FERPFNBMIED

e The CIC staff donated a total of HK$41,984 to various ¢ ZLEINSEENBREEASHE
programmes 41,984 7T

ERRRERR

fo3=EJ=k 4

Green Joyful Home For Disabled
#LB
Vownieer Service
August - 2013
B CARE {}
‘*m Nabitat T

GRI EN JOVFUL
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Charitable Events Held by the CIC

Members, industry stakeholders and CIC staff joined the charitable
racing competition in the Construction Industry Sports Day cum
Charity Fun Day held by the CIC on 17 March 2013. A total of
HK$50,000 was raised for the Construction Charity Fund.

ZCB invited families from Tin Shui Wai under the Tung Wah Group
Jockey Club Tin Shui Wai Integrated Services Centre to participate in
the “Low Carbon X'mas Fest” in December 2013. The participants
enjoyed performances, relaxed in the landscaped area as well as
sampled the low carbon produce.

In recognising its commitment to corporate social responsibilities,
the CIC was named as a “Caring Organisation” by the Hong Kong
Council of Social Services for the third consecutive year.

EENE  ERFEMZESEIZMT
HEM2013F3R17THBRPMBEEEE
HEBERERALA  AREXEEESE
184 50,0008 7T °

THMAMERE=RETERKELEE R
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EMEIREPERMESTHERERAHKE
TREY) °

AEEBFE-_FREBLERBBEES
RIALRBIER] BEAXRBEHEEL
GEEMAGE °

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 3% 49



| ?——_il‘;ﬁ"
IR |

Report

—1
2 &

Sustainabilit

LL

=
i




This section highlights the CIC's commitment and initiatives in
relation to the sustainability of the construction industry, promotion
of innovation, and care for the environment.

Sustainability of the Construction Industry

The sustainability of the construction industry depends on technology
advancement, innovation, and most importantly a passionate
workforce. The construction industry is in need of a group of young
practitioners to take up future roles. As such, the CIC held the “Build
Up Ambassador” Award, aiming to raise young people’s interest in
the construction industry and to elevate the professional image of the
industry with selected role models.

In November 2013, 13 Build Up Ambassadors were appointed to
share their construction experience with the media and the public.
Their experiences were reported in Recruit, am730, Sing Tao Daily,
on Radio Television Hong Kong, and in promotional advertisements
in bus stations, MTR stations, as well as in talks at construction
recruitment fairs and in schools. With the support of their families
to develop their careers in the industry, the Build Up Ambassadors
also influenced others, especially young people to learn more about
opportunities in the industry .

A RRE

AHEMNEREEREXTRHERR
RIS A1 RAREIRE ) M A AGE RIEHE ©

REXNARFEZE

ERM AR AR RS B ER XA
MM REENERRBMNTERK -
BEEXLIRE HFELXEBRBEARRN
AR Wit FEHEDLT [BuildFE K
FREE FERRFIFHREXNE
B WHEREHA X BMRTITENEE
fiZE

f£20134 11 A+ & & £ % 13 Build 7+
SEAREAEEMAR D ZMFIREESE
TE4ESR o IR H S 248 B (Recruit)
(am730) - (EBH®W)  HEFEE - BxL
uh RIS EES - AREEFERE
EREREESEEHEEEREEE - TXRA
MENTHET  SUAFEREEARS
WERE  MEEZHEALLEFEA
TRIEITERHEOKE -

Vow of the Build Up
Ambassadors:

"l promise to try my best to
elevate the public’s knowledge
about the construction industry
and to encourage the young
generation to join the industry by
sharing our experiences”

Build AE h AES &
[REWEE  REVEME BAQ
FHBEXNZR BEIEEAL
B SEBFEE-—RKMARESE - |
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Innovation

Innovation spearheads the productivity and effectiveness of the
construction process. To encourage research activities and the use
of innovative techniques that directly meet the industry needs, the
“CIC Research Fund” was launched to provide support to researchers.
Since its inaugural funding grants to research institutes in 2012, an
overwhelming response has been received. Up to December 2013, 11
projects have been awarded, covering various construction-related
research areas:

1 Construction Technology

e  Adopting Eurocodes by Hong Kong construction industry
— Technical guide on effective design and construction to
European Steel Code EN-1993-1-1

e Innovative design technique for steel-concrete composite
structures in Hong Kong

e  Practical guidelines on seismic detailing for concrete
buildings in Hong Kong

e Gyroscopic stabilisers for construction cranes and gondolas

2 Sustainability
e  Formulation of sustainable trigeneration system design for
high-rise commercial buildings in Hong Kong
e  Feasibility of delivering high-rise low carbon buildings in
Hong Kong
e A study of impact of building envelope on urban outdoor
thermal environment

3 Construction Health and Safety
e  S-Helmet — a proactive construction safety management
system based on real-time localisation

4 Construction Materials
e Development of high modulus concrete for tall buildings
e Recycling used timber formwork into lightweight, thermal-
insulating cement-bonded particleboards

5  Productivity
e Development of an automatic image collection and analysis
system for improving onsite construction productivity
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The CIC is dedicated to steering research to suit the industry
needs as well as promoting innovative research outcomes with real
applications. The research findings of the funded projects will be
disseminated accordingly to collect constructive feedback from the
industry, for the effective management of the CIC Research Fund and
to promote sustainable research and development in the Hong Kong
construction industry.

Liberal Studies
Information Kit

Liberal Studies
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To introduce the Hong Kong's
construction industry to both students
and teachers and to encourage critical
thinking, the CIC published a set of
liberal studies materials for secondary
schools. Through attaining a better
understanding of the important role of
the construction industry in Hong Kong, it is hope that more

young people may consider a career in the sector.

Work Environment

A friendly, safe and green working environment for the CIC staff is
essential. This in turn increases the sense of belonging and team work
among the CIC staff. Responding to market best practice, paternity
leave was introduced in 2011. Care to staff was extended to family
members. The CIC has a Staff Education Fund for Children which
awards scholarships and grants.

is the motto at the CIC. The CIC holds annual
outings for staff and their families to enjoy social time together.

“Work life balance”

In 2013, a one-day tour of the Hong Kong Geo-park was held. In
addition to the outing, a departmental activity fund was initiated
in the year. This encouraged more exchanges outside work among
colleagues within departments to build stronger and binding inter-
personal relationships.

A healthy work environment is the pursuit of the CIC. The CIC
engaged an Indoor Air Quality assessor to assess the air quality of the
CIC headquarters. The CIC was found to be compliant with the “Good
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Sustainability Report

Class” of the Indoor Air Quality Objectives approved by the Hong
Kong Inspection Body Accreditation Scheme. The CIC was awarded

the Indoor Air Quality Certificate (Good Class).

Sustainable Procurement

The CIC's sustainable procurement practice aims to reduce the
lifelong adverse environmental, social and economic impacts of
products and services purchased throughout their life. In addition
to the considerations of value for money, optimal quantity of goods
and reasonable repairs and maintenance costs, the impact to the
community is also considered. The CIC continued to encourage the
Fu Hong Society Supported Employment Service for bulk mail packing
of promotion materials. In 2013, the CIC also engaged the Chinese
YMCA of Hong Kong — Home of Love Sheltered Workshop for its
bulk mail service for marketing information.

The procurement process adopted market leading practices including:

e Planning — identify whether there is a need for the goods or
services and consider alternatives to purchasing

e Pre-procurement — include sustainability specifications as well as
ethical requirements such as anti-collusion, and compliance with
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance, in the procurement requests

e  Evaluation — take into consideration the efforts put in by
suppliers on environmental or social perspectives

e Management — follow up with environmental and social
performances throughout the execution of the procurement
contract

Environment

The CIC cares about the environment. In 2013, the CIC jointly with
ZCB launched the Carbon Labelling Scheme (CLS) for construction
materials to promote green building practices and sustainable
development. The CLS aims to provide a benchmark on the carbon
footprint of construction products for the industry to select “low
carbon” materials. Focused on climate change and greenhouse
gas abatement, the CLS initially covers three categories of carbon-
intensive construction products including cement, reinforcing bar and
structural steel. Further research to include 10 other carbon intensive
materials for potential future integration into the scheme is being
conducted by the University of Hong Kong.
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A green roof on the CIC Aberdeen Trade Testing and Training Centre
was completed during the year, offering a leisure area for staff and
the public. The green roof reduces the solar heat transmitted inside
the building which in turn reduces the demand for air-conditioning
and hence electricity.

The CIC is committed to the “4Rs"”and achieved the following in 2013:
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Recognising its efforts in protecting the environment, the CIC
obtained the “Class of Good”, Wastewise Label from the Hong Kong
Awards for Environmental Excellence.

For further information on the CIC's commitment to low carbon
building and living, please refer to the ZCB Report (P. 85).
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Committee on Administration and Finance
Membership List

Chairman
Ir LEE Shing-see

Members

CIC Members

Ir CHAN Siu-hung

Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul

Ir PANG Yat-bond, Derrick

Mr. YU Wai-wai

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)

Terms of Reference

1. To advise CIC on staff matters, including recruitment, salary and
other conditions of service.

2. To advise CIC on general administration matters, including
accommodation and facilities.

3. To co-ordinate and prepare annual estimates of income and
expenditure and programme of activities for approval of CIC.

4. To recommend appropriate investments of surplus funds.

5. To advise CIC on other financial matters.

Committee Report

In the financial aspect, the total income of the Construction Industry
Council (CIC) for the year 2013 was $784.37 million (2012: $574.99
million) representing an increase of 36.4%. The total expenditure for
the year 2013 was $549.30 million (2012: $397.49 million) with an
increase of 38.2% annually. The operating result for the year showed
a surplus of $235.07 million (2012: $177.50 million).
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Committee Reports

In 2013, there was a $0.90 million gain in other comprehensive
income for the year. This $0.90 million represented a net increase
in fair value of the available-for-sale securities investments held at
the balance sheet date (2012: increase of $10.74 million) which was
recognised in 2013 in accordance with the requirement of the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards. Combined with the 2013 surplus
of $235.07 million (2012: $177.50 million), total comprehensive
income for 2013 amounted to $235.97 million (2012: $188.24
million).

Construction levy amounted to $664.04 million in 2013 (2012:
$484.52 million), which accounted for about 84.7% of the total
income for the year, and was the main source of income of the
Council.

The increase of levy income by 37.0% was due to the amalgamation
of the Construction Industry Council and the Construction Workers
Registration Authority (CWRA) effective 1 January 2013, as well as the
increased levy received from building and infrastructure engineering
works undertaken in the year 2013 from both private and public
sectors. Levies assessed on the value of the construction operations
in private and public sectors (including all Government projects, port
and airport development, and the Mass Transit Railway construction
works) were $285.42 million and $378.29 million respectively,
representing 43.0% and 57.0% of the total levy income for 2013. In
addition, penalty received on overdue levy was $0.33 million (0.1%
of the total levy income) for 2013.

Since the amalgamation of the CWRA in 2013, the Council has
earned registration income of $9.45 million from the enlarged
function of construction workers registration.

The investment and interest income for 2013 was $9.34 million as
compared to $10.53 million for 2012. The slight decrease in income
for 2013 was mainly due to a lower market interest rate on placing
time deposits in banks.

Course fees and related income, another major type of income for the
Council amounted to $25.93 million in 2013 (2012: $26.79 million).
The trade testing income for 2013 was $5.61 million (2012: $5.68
million). Increase in other income was mainly due to reimbursement
of trainee allowances from the Government (total other income for
2013 was $70.00 million as compared to $47.46 million in 2012).
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Total expenditure in 2013 was $549.30 million as compared to
$397.49 million in 2012, representing an increase of 38.2%. Major
items included:—

Staff costs amounted to $263.95 million in 2013 as compared
to $216.92 million in 2012. The increase of 21.7% was mainly
due to salary increment effective from April 2013 and more
staff employed to provide services for the enlarged duties and
functions of CIC such as training and workers registration.

Training expenses amounted to $132.93 million in 2013 (2012:
$77.75 million) representing an increase of 71.0%. The increase
was mainly due to the increase in trainee allowances for
selected trades under the Government’s initiative of “Investing
in Construction Manpower” Scheme and for existing training
courses plus increased expenses for the Contractor Cooperative
Training Scheme and the Subcontractor Cooperative Training
Scheme.

Workshop expenses increased by 24.5% and amounted to $23.84
million in 2013 (2012: $19.15 million). The increase was mainly
due to the rise in the expenses for consumable materials and
tools used in the CIC training centres and training grounds.

Advertising and publicity expenses amounted to $26.17 million
in 2013 (2012: $13.72 million). The increase by 90.7% in 2013
was mainly due to expenses incurred in the Construction Safety
Week, the media including television programmes, advertising
expense for recruiting of trainees and promotion of training
schemes, and promotional activities for workers registration.

General and administrative expenses amounted to $64.99 million
in 2013 (2012: $49.23 million). The 32.0% increase in 2013 was
mainly due to a $3.55 million increase in the funding support for
the operating activities of the Hong Kong Green Building Council
a $3.50 million increase in rental, rates, security and cleaning
fees incurred for the expanded premises and increased number
of training grounds, a $2.65 million increase in the expanded
function of construction workers registration, $2.14 million
increase in the funding support for the operating activities of
Zero Carbon Building Limited (ZCBL) and $1.40 million in more
research work carried out during the year.

Capital commitments of $39.70 million in 2013 (2012: $25.13
million) comprised contracted capital expenditure for the
renovation and design works at training centres and training
grounds, as well as the enhanced construction at ZCBL.

TR
il
1133
St
DOf

2013F E2F BTN AS(E49308 7T ¢
Lt #2012 4B A3189,749& T 1BINT
382% ° =TEIEH B :

2013F W E B A A2186,3958

e —

TC - EE¥2012F R 2181,692 87T ©
EMBW217% T EEHRE & B
20134 AMERAEREREZET
RHRE - NEEEZEME ek
Be7% - BlaniEsl TIER T AGERE -

2013F WP EB R A£1183,2938

S —

T (20124 : 7, 7758 7T) BT
71.0% ° EFBREMNE I T EIK
FIEEREEAN]AHEEET A
FiE TIE IR AR IEA & B2 B Fl&
EEAEEIEE RS BEA EE
M HEE -

2013F M) T 5 X 1 B2,3848

. —

7t (20124 :1,915& 7t) » M 7T
245% HERITEZEARBEXS
SETIIRF L RIGRS 2 EFEEY
BRITEZEREN -

03FMNESESEEERH A2617

e —

B 7t (20124 11,3728 JT) °» 2013
FEINT0.7%  FTEREANEERN
BEELTERAIL  BEEHAHES
WS - BEZEREEIIRETE
MESY HMER T AZEMOEEX

H oo

2013F M —RITHERA6,4998 T

e —

(20124 : 4,923& Jr) ° 2013418

h7T32.0% -

TERARHEERE

BEZOLETINESIEEMT
3558 T © phigHni5 i K 3718 hn sl AR
LHEMERAS =2 RERE
B HEN3508 T IBAREET
ATMDgemz Higm2esEx -
THRAMERARCETHNES L
‘ILIN2148B T RFARNZHIL N 140
BITAEITIFR TIE -

20134 ) & RN & & £3,9708 7T

e —

(2012F : 25138 ) B A
R ORI RIS B B S R iR st T2 A0
TRk E TIRMD TN E R

H oo

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 & 3R

59



Committee Reports

At the end of 2013, the Council held a total of $1,148.6 million as
its accumulated fund and reserves, compared to $909.69 million
in 2012. Of the $1,148.6 million, $2.93 million were net assets
transferred from former CWRA to the Council from 1 January 2013
by virtue of section 72(1) of the Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance. The Council continues to place most of the funds in time
deposits and bonds with licensed banks in Hong Kong, and invest a
limited sum in listed shares.

In accordance with the Construction Industry Council Ordinance, the
Council submitted its annual report for the year ended 31 December
2012 to the Secretary for Development in June 2013, together with
the audited financial statements for the same period and the auditor’s
report thereof. These were subsequently tabled at the Legislative
Council.
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CIC’'s Financial Results and Financial Position (Year ended 31 December)

BEESSMHREERMBGRR (BZ212A83181H)

2013 2012 2011
HKS$m HK$m HK$m
BESHBRL ABEIEET ABEBIBEER
Income WA 784.4 575.0 432.9
Expenditure X (549.3) (397.5) (317.4)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale MmN 5 AR
investments reclassified from equity A EEHIRERE - - (8.3)
Surplus for the year FEREK 235.1 177.5 107.2
Other comprehensive income for the year FEE 2 mikz
Net increase/(decrease) in fair value of ~ AJEHEZIRENFE
available-for-sale investments 32 (OR) 0.9 10.7 (9.5)
Reclassification adjustment for BEEERITERRE
impairment loss included ZEHNERAE
in profit or loss = - 8.3
0.9 10.7 (1.2)
Total comprehensive income for the year FE A2 EIKzE 236.0 188.2 106.0
NET ASSETS FEE 1,148.6 909.7 721.4
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Committee on Construction Site Safety
Membership List
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Mr. CHEUNG Hau-wai
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Co-opted Members

Mr. CHAN Cho-sing, Joel
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Ms. FUNG Yin-suen, Ada

— Chairman of Task Force on Site Safety of Working in Lift Shaft

Mr. KWONG Chiu-ling, Victor

— Chairman of Informal Task Force on Site Safety Incidents

Mr. LAM Tat-ming, Terence

— Development Bureau

Ir LAU Chi-kin

— Chairman of Task Force on Review of Major Construction
Method Statements

Mr. LI Chi-leung

— Chairman of Task Force on Work Safety of Repair,
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Mr. NG Man-fai, William

— The Hong Kong Federation of Insurers
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— The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical
and Mechanical Contractors
Mr. TSE Shek-hung, David
— Hong Kong General Building Contractors Association
Prof. WONG Kwan-wah, Francis
— Chairman of Task Force on Site Housekeeping
Mr. WONG Wai-man
— Construction Site Workers General Union
Dr. YEUNG Koon-chuen, Winson
— Occupational Safety and Health Council
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Terms of Reference

1. To review and monitor site safety performance of the
construction industry.

2. To identify and recommend measures for improving safety
performance to CIC.

3. To promote adoption of the improvement measures by the
industry.

Committee Report

The Committee on Construction Site Safety (Com-CSS) had a
productive year in 2013. With tremendous support from the members
of the Com-CSS, its various task forces, and task groups, a fruitful
number of initiatives were completed. First of all, three technical
guidelines were published. The first one was the Guidelines on
Site Safety Measures for Working in Hot Weather. The guidelines
provided guidance for employers, main contractors, subcontractors
and construction workers on heat stress assessments as well as safety
measures and special arrangements for working in hot weather at
construction sites. Promotional seminars were held to promote and
explain the guidelines to industry stakeholders.

The second one was the Guidelines on Fabrication of Reinforcement
Cages of Bored Piles which provided recommendations on good
practices concerning fabrication work and advised construction industry
stakeholders, practitioners and professionals to adopt the procedures to
enhance the safety of workers and site safety performance.

The third one was the Guidelines on Safety of Lift Shaft Works
(Volume 3 — Throughout the Occupation Stage of Building) which
concentrated on the precautionary tools required for enhancing
the safety of lift works throughout the occupation period. After
publication, promotional seminars were planned to elaborate on the
guidelines to lift contractors, lift workers, management companies
and lift owners.
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Five safety alerts were published in the year 2013. They were (a)
Safety Alert No. 001/13: Safe Use of Mobile Metal Scaffolds for
Repair, Maintenance, Alteration and Addition (RMAA) Works, aimed
at enhancing site safety for RMAA works by highlighting the essential
elements required; (b) Safety Alert No. 002/13: Adoption of Method
Statements on Sites, intended to encourage wider adoption of
method statements on sites by the construction industry; (c) Safety
Alert No. 003/13: Avoid Using Ladders for Working at Height in
Repair, Maintenance, Alteration and Addition Works highlighted
common hazards in using ladders and appealed for the industry
to use suitable and safe working platforms instead of ladders for
working at height for RMAA works; (d) Safety Alert No. 004/13: Safe
Use of Lifting Appliances and Lifting Gear, demonstrated the safety
measures required when using lifting appliances and lifting gear;
and (e) Safety Alert No. 005/13: Excavation Works in the Vicinity of
Underground Utilities — Buried Gas Pipes and Cables, explained the
safety measures needed when conducting excavation works near
underground utilities.

A technical seminar on the use of reduced voltage hand tools in
construction sites was held on 12 December 2013. Another one will
be arranged in January 2014 due to overwhelming response from the
industry.

Three site housekeeping posters were produced in 2013. The purpose
of the posters was to provide simple and clear messages to industry
stakeholders on good site housekeeping practices for quick reference
by both the site management staff and frontline workers. The three
site housekeeping posters were “Site Housekeeping”, “Provision of
Safe and Proper Means of Access on Construction Site” and “Handling
and Storage of Chemical Substances and Waste”.
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The CIC co-organised the Construction Safety Week 2013 with the
Development Bureau in late May 2013, with the aim to continue
promulgating the “Zero Accident” message to construction industry
practitioners. The week comprised a Zero Accident Declaration
Ceremony, a Construction Safety Week Conference, a Construction
Safety Week Site Visit and the 19th Considerate Contractors Site
Award Scheme (2012) Award Presentation Ceremony. Overwhelming
support was received from more than 30 organisations, covering a
wide spectrum of the industry and the campaign attracted excellent
participation and positive feedback from both the industry and the
general public.

Handling and Storage of
Chemical Sbstances and Waste
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A highlight was the Zero Accident Declaration Ceremony held at the
Kai Tak Development Area on 27 May 2013, where more than 500
construction workers attended the ceremony and personnel at 800
construction sites around the territory participated via webcast. The
HKSAR Chief Executive, Mr. LEUNG Chun-ying led more than 30,000
construction workers through a morning exercise routine and pledged
to work together to achieve the goal of “zero accident”. Together
with Ir LEE Shing-see, the Chairman of the Construction Industry
Council and Mr. Paul CHAN, the Secretary for Development, appealed
to stakeholders to commit to providing a safe working environment
and to foster a site safety culture.

In general, 2013 was a successful year of the Com-CSS. It will
continue to collaborate with the Government and various industry
stakeholders to keep pace with construction safety performance and
recommend appropriate measures for safety enhancement in the
construction industry.
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Terms of Reference

1. To make recommendations on improving the environmental
friendliness of buildings and infrastructures including measures
for enhancing energy efficiency, improving indoor environmental
quality and minimising loading on the environment.

2. To recommend good practices for improving the environmental
performance of construction contracts including measures for
abating environmental nuisances and reducing waste generation.

3. To co-ordinate and promote construction research and
development and facilitate practical application of research
results by the construction industry.

4. To advise on the strategy for development of construction standards.

5. To develop systems for assessing the performance of the
construction industry.

Committee Report

The Committee on Environment and Technology (Com-ENT)
completed a number of tasks and generated initiatives in 2013
covering the areas of enhancement to the environment, construction
technology and productivity, collaborative research and gauging the
performance of the construction industry.

The Working Group on Roadmap for BIM Implementation prepared a
publication named Final Draft Report of the Roadmap for BIM Strategic
Implementation in Hong Kong’s Construction Industry in which
imminent actions including the establishment of standards, promotion

and training are recommended for the
implementation of BIM in Hong Kong. The
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CIC also successfully organised its annual e
conference titled “Construction Innovation:
Productivity and Technology” in November
2013 with an emphasis on BIM. The CIC
Conference 2013 was well received with a
record breaking audience of more than 260

local and overseas delegates.

The CIC Carbon Labelling Scheme for construction products
was formally launched in November 2013. The scheme aims to
provide a benchmark on the carbon footprint of construction
products for the industry to select “low carbon” materials. A series of
training programmes has been organised to provide basic knowledge
on carbon footprint and the scheme, as well as to offer professional
training on carbon auditing.
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The Research on River Sand Substitutes for

Concrete Production and Cement Sand Mortar

BAEBRR T BRI T TR T8
RRFFEHE (E—HB) HHEEES

Production (Phase One) was completed and
its study report was published in April 2013
with findings suggesting that “manufactured
sand” is the most viable substitute to river
sand in respect of its reasonable cost, packing
density and workability. The Phase Two
Research Study, with an aim to draft a set of
specifications for river sand substitutes for
practical use commenced in August 2013.

The Task Force on Schematic Design for Application for Radio-frequency
Identification (RFID), GPS and Sensor Technology in Monitoring the
Movement of Construction Waste aims to make use of readily available
technologies to monitor the movement of construction waste. With the
assistance of the Hong Kong R&D Centre for Logistic and Supply Chain
Management Enabling Technologies (LCSM), a standardised and open
system specification solution prototype based on RFID was developed and
tested at a Hong Kong Housing Authority construction site in mid June
2013. The site trial proved the applicability of the passive RFID solution
to a construction site environment. Further study will be conducted to
work out the full cycle monitoring of the movement of dump trucks
electronically.

The Phase One Study Report on Strategic Implementation of
Prefabrication and Modular Construction has been accepted by
the CIC. A further in-depth study on the establishment of a local
prefabrication yard and the potential utilisation of the yard, as
recommended by the report, will be conducted in 2014.

To facilitate innovation and development for the local construction
industry, the CIC provides funding support for research projects with
practical value that directly meet industry needs. The CIC invites
research proposals from research institutes twice each year, in March
and September respectively. Around HK$12 million has to date been
granted for 11 research projects, covering the research areas of
productivity, construction technology, sustainability, and site safety.

To gauge the performance of the industry, the first construction
industry performance report, published in April 2013, measured the
key performance indicators (KPI) of the construction industry in terms
of productivity, health and safety, and manpower for the years 2001-
2011.
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Committee Reports

Terms of Reference

1. To examine current practices on procurement in relation to
project planning, tendering, contract administration and
site supervision and recommend good practices to improve
the quality and cost effectiveness in delivery of construction
contracts.

Committee Report

Procurement is at the heart of delivering quality, efficient and cost-
effective construction. The Committee on Procurement (Com-PCM)
and its task forces continued to review procurement practices and
related matters that are of interest and significance to the industry.
A series of well-received publications were developed by the Com-
PCM in 2013. These included (a) a Procurement Fact Sheet on the
Competition Ordinance and related articles published in the CIC
Newsletter and various newspapers introducing the Competition
Ordinance (Cap. 619) and its potential implications for the
construction industry’s stakeholders; (b) a set of procurement alerts
entitled Recent Issues of Concern on Tendering of Construction
Contracts to draw the attention of stakeholders to the need to follow
good practice in relation to the procurement of construction contracts
covering three topics: “Contract with quantities provided but not
forming part of the contract”, “Deletion of ‘Extension of Time
clauses’ in construction contracts”, and “Signing of undated Building
Authority's Specified Forms for notification or certification of events

which have yet to take place”.
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The Competition Ordinance

A Competition Law cum Security of Payment Forum marked another
key accomplishment of the Com-PCM in 2013. Successfully held on
3 May 2013, the Competition Law session of the Forum helped to
inform construction industry stakeholders, in particular small and
medium-sized enterprises, of the key provisions of the Competition
Ordinance and some practical steps to avoid infringing the new
legislation.
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To promote industry links, the Executive Director of the CIC made
presentations at the following international forums on the importance
of a competition compliance programme in the construction sector as
well as the application of NEC3:

e Hong Kong: Global Competition Law Forum Asia 2013 held in
Hong Kong on 29 August 2013

e  Global Competition Law Forum 2013 held in Seoul, South Korea
on 15 October 2013

e The Asian Competition Forum’s 9th Annual Conference titled
“Regional Economic Integration: The Role of Competition” held
in Hong Kong on 10 December 2013

e NEC Asia Pacific Users’ Group Conference 2013 — The Impact of
Collaborative Contracting held in Hong Kong on 25 November
2013

A new task force and a special group were formed under the Com-
PCM in 2013. The Task Force on Employer-Procured Insurance Policies
in Construction Contracts was formed in early 2013 to review the
applicability of employer-procured insurance policies for construction
contracts in Hong Kong. With the concerted efforts of its members,
the task force is ready to issue a fact sheet in 2014 to give industry
stakeholders general information on the application of owner-
controlled insurance programmes in construction contracts.

The Special Group on On-Demand Bonds was formed under the Com-
PCM in late 2013 to deliberate on the issues of on-demand bonds
as raised by the Hong Kong Construction Association. As the first
step, the special group will review critically the appropriateness and
necessity for commissioning a research or consultancy study on the
issues, and prepare a procurement alert to give recommendations
on good practices relating to the use of on-demand bonds in
construction contracts.

The Reference Materials on the Selection of Consultants being
prepared by the Task Force on the Selection of Consultants and
Contractors, and the Reference Materials on Frequently Asked
Questions on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts being prepared by the
Task Force on NEC3 Collaborative Contracts are in the production
pipeline for publication in 2014.
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To operate and develop the Subcontractor Registration Scheme
(SRS).

To raise the professional standard of subcontractors through
providing training courses and other value-added services
under the SRS and coordinating the training organised by other
organisations.

To examine current arrangements for selection and management
of subcontractors and recommend improvements.

To promote use of written subcontracts.

To promote good practices relating to dispute resolution.

The year marked another important milestone in the development of
the “Voluntary Subcontractor Registration Scheme” first introduced in
November 2003, which was renamed the “Subcontractor Registration
Scheme” (SRS) as an enhancement in Stage 2 of its implementation
with effect from 1 January 2013.

The renamed scheme aims to enhance the integrity of registered
subcontractors by broadening the circumstances under which
regulatory actions may be taken, facilitate new entrants to the
subcontracting industry by establishing new entry requirements to
cater for registered skilled workers and supervisory staff to become
registered subcontractors.

As an industry wide self-regulatory initiative, the SRS continued
to evolve to drive for the healthy development of subcontracting
practices and the excellence of the construction industry at large.
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Committee Reports

By 2014, the SRS will have been in effect for a decade. A review of 2B &IE R 2014 F B F 1 &
the whole scheme will be undertaken for its further development 3 E2EERFEREBEZMSIET —
over the next decade. A new Task Force on Enhancements to fETHFMERETZERN - Bl BE
Subcontractor Registration Scheme will be established to enhance the #K A D BEFMEIEHEE/NE - &

current SRS by considering: BIATEEELE—FRHA :
providing positive incentives (such as a reward system) to RETESE (WREHE) @D
encourage subcontractors’ registration and wider adoption of B kRN ERFEEE EEZH
the scheme in particular in private projects; FKAGMEE
categorising subcontractors into different classes but avoid EEMrBED B TREE - BRE
building up a high entry barrier; EER T BT MPE
identifying motives that could encourage subcontractors to BRSHEFENEESBEEE K
upgrade themselves. H e

As continuous improvement to the SRS is essential to the recognition ZESEXRFHEMNRE @ H Bk

of the scheme by industry stakeholders, the CIC will keep enhancing  [E ™ {E#5 & S - E%Qﬂ—r%%%%ﬂﬁ?ﬂﬁ%‘]
the SRS to meet the needs of industry stakeholders and to better [EAEFHMEERFSENT K RRE
serve the industry as a whole. BEEFTZE -

The protection of workers’ salaries is crucial to maintaining harmony 2 #RFEEENUEEEF BT SO -
in Hong Kong’s construction industry and society at large. In March RIETABETERBEBHEE - 5F=
2013, the CIC updated the specimen employment contract in its A ' ZEEH T (REIAERE TEREK
publication Guidelines on Measures for Protection of Workers’ Wages 85| (£ ZiR)) FHERES AIHA - W
(Version 2) which was endorsed by construction industry stakeholders. R #FDERE - BE]ENERE LR
The revised specimen employment contract aims to facilitate the S EEEFESBFREITHALARELEN
employer and the worker to specify clearly all the different types of TREBEATE - LRI ARAFEZET
wages entitled to the worker to ensure fairness. & o

The guidelines as a whole encourage industry practitioners to develop E# NS HBTEREEHFTELAT A
an ethical way of working under the principles of fairness, openness, 7 * Mz M B EREME TIERF o 2HH
harmony and entitlement. The updated guidelines will help the 85| BBEEERNEE2MH A AUREH
construction industry adopt sound practices to facilitate the early 758 BT & #)fE B RAR R o
identification and speedy resolution of problems in relation to wage

matters.
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FOR APPLICATION OF DISPUTE RESOLUTION
IN CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS,
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There should be a suite of standard forms of domestic subcontract
containing fair, equitable and properly balanced terms for easy
adoption in domestic subcontracting between the main contractor
and the first tier subcontractor and between the subcontractor
and the lower tier subcontractor. The Task Force on Standard
Contract Provisions for Domestic Subcontracts has been working
on the standard forms of domestic subcontract taking into account
existing good practice in the industry and the principles set out in
the Guidelines on Standard Forms of Domestic Subcontracts for
Basic Trade published by the then Provisional Construction Industry
Coordination Board.

The first and second round of the discussions on standard contract
provisions for domestic subcontracts were completed. Following
industry consultation on the draft in the second quarter of 2014, it is
expected that the final version will be available by the end of 2014.

Guidelines on Dispute Resolution was published by the CIC in 2010
to advocate the availability of different dispute resolution methods for
the choice of contracting parties of the construction contract which
include mediation, adjudication, independent expert certifier review,
expert determination and short form arbitration. To facilitate the
adoption of the alternative dispute resolution methods recommended
in the guidelines, the Reference Materials for Application of Dispute
Resolution in Construction Contracts was issued in early 2013 which
provided a set of rules and procedures of the five dispute resolution
mechanisms proposed.

To facilitate the seamless implementation of the new mechanism set
out in the Reference Materials for Application of Dispute Resolution
in Construction Contracts, a Working Group on the Review of
the Dispute Resolution Mechanism was established to fine-tune
or supplement the rules and procedures of the dispute resolution
mechanisms so that they can be readily incorporated into construction
contracts.

In view of the fact that the Dispute Resolution Advisor system
(DRA) has been successfully adopted in the main contract (between
employer and main contractor) of public works, it was proposed
that the adoption of DRA services in subcontract level (between
main contractor and subcontractor) should be explored with a view
to giving advice to subcontractors on specific issues, particularly in
the area of payment. A Task Force on Adoption of DRA System in
Subcontract was established to explore the feasibility of adopting
DRA in subcontracts.
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Committee Reports

Objections Board
Membership List

Convenor
Ms. CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa

Members
CIC Members

Sr WONG Bay

Prof. WONG Sze-chun
(since 1 February 2013)

Prof. KO Jan-ming
(until 31 January 2013)

Terms of Reference

RERBEHEES
RERE

aBRA
WEH Lt

RE

ZeKE

= Lt BIERD
=HE HF
(20132 A1 8#E)

BER HE
(201341 A3181H)

R

1. To determine objections to levy and surcharge made under 1. BtiZ(EE 2% & 0) F55Ek

section 55 of Construction Industry Council Ordinance (CICO) (RBEET AGMED) E29&1EH
or made under section 29 of Construction Workers Registration HEFREMTINE R EEREIR -
Ordinance.

Board Report ZEERE

By virtue of section 56 of the C/CO, the Objections Board has the #1BIE (&% HEE0) F56F BER
power to confirm, cancel or reduce the levy or surcharge. During the W EEZEEA{TERENEERE  BUS
year 2013, there was no objection case lodged by the contractors on KA BB INE - F£2013ER
the levies assessed by the CIC. AR R IR A RE B ER -

To provide guidance on the construction industry levy imposed on  Bti%E TIZEM (EE X2 K0]) &
the electrical and mechanical works under the CICO, Levy Guide No. X &i[E @ HHEN B3R (BEBKS T2
3 "Levy on Repair and Maintenance of Electrical and Mechanical {5 - BB RREMBEEMFTIES) B
Works” was posted on the CIC website for information of the industry  7£20134% 2 ARSIk REL - ¥R
in February 2013. =
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Construction Industry Training Board

Membership List

Chairman FE

Ir PANG Yat-bond, Derrick Z—H TiRAD
Members KB

Ir HO Ngai-leung, Albert AR TI2AD
Ms. HUNG Yee-man e Lt
Sr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen FEJBEE JBIZFRD
Mr. LAM Kai-chung, Albert NG
Mr. LAM Ping-hong, Robert MEER k4%
Mr. LI Chi-leung FFe kA
Mr. LOK Kwei-sang, Tandy BREAE A
Mr. MAK Tak-ching BEE %4
Mr. NG Kwok-kwan REIE %S4
Ir SYNN Raymond-cheung FEKFR TIZAD
Mr. SZE Kyran MERER k4%
Prof. TAM Chi-ming B R
Mr. TSE Chun-yuen, Eric HRR AE

B
PR R R IR -

Terms of Reference
1. To provide training courses for the construction industry. 1.

RIEERRI M ERFERFIRP L -

2. To establish and maintain industrial training centres for the 2.
construction industry.

3. To assist, including by the provision of financial assistance, in 3. %82 oK M EEEIRE A DIRRIE
the placement of persons who have completed training courses BABLEE - BIEAREE BRI 7
provided for the construction industry. A4 T B o

4. To assess the standards of skills achieved by any person in any 4. RPZEMATED REEFE R EBESE
kind of work involving or in connection with the construction MHENEREREN TEAED ERW
industry, to conduct examinations and tests, to issue or award FMKE - WA S TIERTE
certificates of attendance or competence, and to establish the ZROBE - B ERIEETRHEK
standards to be achieved in respect of any such work. BT 7K 28 B & M F] FE B = B K

:’Z o

5. To advise on manpower planning and development for 5 BEEZANKEIREE BEEXE
construction personnel at professional, supervisory and craftsman AT EBEREI=(EED RZHE
levels. R o

6. To foster an ethical culture. 6. BBERBEZNATHREIRST -
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Board Report

The demand for construction manpower will remain high in the next
few years in the light of the upcoming construction peak for the
10 infrastructure projects and the commencement of various public
works, private works / building repairs and maintenance projects.
To better assess the future manpower situation, the Construction
Industry Training Board (CITB) in 2008 launched a construction
manpower study and in 2013 updated the study for construction
workers, technicians, supervisors and professionals. The first update
of the CIC manpower forecast study (workers) was accepted by the
CIC in October 2013 and the parts on technicians, supervisors and
professionals together with the study on workers will be updated on
a reqular yearly basis.

To cater to the future needs of the industry, the CIC has been
investing to increase training places, enhance the skills of workers,
and attract new recruits. These included the introduction of the
Enhanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme (ECMTS) in 2011
and the Enhanced Construction Supervisor / Technician Training
Scheme (ECSTS) in 2012 to meet the rising manpower demand.
The CITB also actively set up a number of outdoor training grounds
and took on the simulation techniques for mechanical operation to
complement the introduction of these training schemes to allow an
increase in training capacity.

The CIC has long offered the regular basic craft courses, technician/
supervisor courses, short courses and part-time courses to provide the
construction industry with a steady supply of manpower and proper
training. To step up its efforts in training new blood, the CITB not only
increased the in-house training capacities and allowance, but also
worked with the industry to launch a number of cooperative training
schemes. These included the Contractor Cooperative Training Scheme
(CCTS), Subcontractor Cooperative Training Scheme (SCTS), Plumbing
Contractor Cooperative Training Scheme (PCTS), and Contractor
Cooperative Training Scheme - E&M Trades (CCTS-E&M) with training
allowance given out to trainees through the mode of “first-hire-
then-train” to encourage new entrants to stay in the industry. The
CITB also provided a training allowance in 2013 to the first year E&M
students of the Diploma in Vocational Education Programme (DVE)
of the Vocational Training Council (VTC) to encourage the students
to join the construction industry after completing their first year of
training.
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To enhance the productivity of the CIC graduate trainees, the CITB
also introduced the On-the-job Training Subsidy Scheme (OJTS) for
Employers of ECMTS graduates. Employers receiving a subsidy under
the scheme are encouraged to employ the graduates of ECMTS trades
under the cooperative training schemes through the provision of six-
month on-the-job training and subsequent employment for not less
than 12 months upon completion of the said training. It is hoped that
graduates will be able to take up more skilled tasks after undertaking
21 to 24 months of training which included site practice.

In addition, to enhance the professional image and public awareness of
the construction industry, the second series of the TV drama — Dreams
Come True was also produced in the year. Through the depiction of
four youngsters who join the construction industry, it is hoped that the
public in particular the youth will have a better understanding of the
industry and be able to make an informed choice of pursuing a career in
construction.

The CITB will continue to closely monitor the manpower situation
of the industry, increase the training provision, and maintain close
contact with the industry stakeholders to roll out measures to address
the rising manpower demand of the construction industry.

e
RERRE

New Training Schemes to Enhance Manpower Supply
B BAF
Press Briefing Session 2% i 3§ &
24.03.2013

\|
/

WA
[0
I8
_&Q/UH_
Off

BRIEAZEBENEEN ZESNHE
b TEBIE I E BRT &l - BRMIEEIRMH
BB SENHES [t BEFEANIR
FHE REEREIGTEINERELE - AT
KA EAMERIEREERERD
1218  HEZERLB2NE24HAR
EIMEBNEINE  SEETRZSEET
=K

%%’a;%ﬁﬁﬁhﬂ%L%%E%R
KM EHREXNORE - BEER
%%<%ﬁﬁ£%> 58 UM FEF
AMAREENEMLE  MAABRALT
HRIRFFTAHBEXORS BN
BBIEE o

EERRBETY T RITENANER
B WEERTRAEH EREH
B A (R N DA R R AR 4T
MANER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 & 3R



Committee Reports

Construction Workers Registration Board
Membership List

Chairman
Mr. CHONG Kin-lit, Paul

Members
Mr. CHAN Chi-hin

Ir CHAN Chi-ming

Ir CHAN Loong Geoffrey
Mr. CHOW Luen-kiu

Ir CHUI Wai-sing

Mr. FU Chin-shing, Ivan
Dr. HO Hok-keung, Paul
Mr. HO Wai-wah

Dr. KUANG Jun-shang

Ir KWAN Po-jen, Helen

Ir Dr. LAU Chi-keung, Jackson
Mr. LI Chi-leung

Mr. NG San-wa, Lawrence
Mr. PANG Long

Mr. WONG Siu-han, Rex
Ms. YU Po-mei, Clarice

Ir YU Shek-man, Ringo
Mr. YU Wai-wai

Terms of Reference

1. To set the qualification requirements for registration or renewal
of registration;

2. To act on and discharge tasks in regard to the Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance, which include inspection of
construction sites, conducting construction workers registration,
handling review and appeal cases relating to workers registration,
maintaining the Daily Attendance Records of construction sites,
and so on; and

3. To perform and exercise such other functions or powers as are
imposed on it by the Construction Industry Council.
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Board Report

The Construction Registration Workers
Board (CWRB) was established with
the amalgamation of the Construction

CONSTRUCTION
INDUSTRY COUNCIL
RERHE

Workers Registration Authority and

the Construction Industry Council on

1 January 2013, to implement the will take effect on 1 January 2013

“Construction Industry Council”
"RIEXEE. B RERIARMEER.
R2013E1B1 A&
AttEnRNEES
"RERBE.

Construction Workers Registration
Ordinance (CWRO) and to administer
the registration of construction

Amalgamation of the “Construction Industry Council” and
the “Construction Workers Registration Authority”

Upon Amalgamation, the organisation will be known as the
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Construction Workers Registration Cards

workers. already issued remain valid

The Construction Workers

e U

Eisting Card AL  New Cad iR

ZEEETHKIUTREXRTAR

Qualification Board and the
Construction Workers Registration System
remains unchanged
BERTARMHELRTE

Construction Workers Review Board
were formed under the CWRB to
review the qualification requirements

for registration or renewal of
registration as well as to conduct a review of any decision of the
registrar which was the subject of a request for review under section
51(1) of the CWRO.

Additionally, four subcommittees and task forces were set up to make
recommendations to address matters arising from the implementation
of the CWRO and registration system as well as on issues concerning
the industry.

Amendments to the CWRO

The Phase One Prohibition under the CWRO came into effect on 1
September 2007. To ensure a smooth implementation of the remaining
phase of prohibition (i.e. designated workers for designated skills),
the Development Bureau carried out extensive discussion and careful
review with the industry from the beginning of 2010 to put forward
amendments to the CWRO. In this regard, the CWRB made suggestions
about the proposed amendments and assisted the Development Bureau
in conducting industry-wide consultations via organising five briefing
sessions between September 2013 and March 2014 to introduce the
proposed amendments and to collect views and opinions of the industry.
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Workers Registration

From 29 December 2005 to 31 December 2013, the Workers
Registration Office received a total of 448,981 applications and
issued 448,541 registration cards after the qualifications of applicants
had been verified. As at 31 December 2013, there were 322,477
registered workers.

Opening in January 2014, the Construction Industry Council Service
Centre (Nam Cheong) will be the CIC's first one-stop platform,
operating in Nam Cheong MTR Station, that will provide workers
registration and renewal, information about the industry and
materials on various construction courses and training programmes.

To provide workers with quality service, the Workers Registration
Secretariat uses SMS to remind workers to renew their registration
before the expiry date of the current registration. In addition, with
continual support from three major trade unions, 2,762 workers
completed their registration renewal through the trade unions in
2013.

Apart from implementation and administration, the CWRB reviews
the mechanism of construction workers registration on a regular
basis. To address the issues associated with workers registration, the
Subcommittee on Registration Matters conducts in-depth discussions
to propose solutions, to clarify and explain the interpretation of the
CWRO so as to put forward recommendations to the CWRB on the
implementation of the ordinance.
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Construction Manpower Supply

To encourage and attract valid and expired Registered Skilled Workers
(Provisional) to attain qualifications and register as a skilled worker,
a special arrangement commencing October 2013 provides a series
of specified training courses covering 67 trades at the reduced rate
of HK$150 each. As of 31 December 2013, a total of 7,224 valid or
expired Registered Skilled Workers (Provisional) completed the courses
with an average pass rate of 89%.

Collection of Worker Data

With a view to reducing the discrepancy between the daily
attendance records submitted by contractors via the computerised
registration management system and the actual attendance of
workers so as to understand the current employment situation and
manpower supply of various trades in the industry, the Task Force on
Data Analysis conducted a telephone survey from May to September
2013. The survey also revealed the reasons of workers remaining
inactive and what incentives could be offered to attract them to rejoin
the construction industry.

To obtain a more reliable and accurate attendance record of workers
and to meet the new requirement stipulated in the proposed
amendments to the ordinance, the Task Force on Construction
Workers Registration System (CWRS) was established in June
2013 to oversee and supervise the development of the CWRS. The
new registration system will improve and streamline the existing
procedures of issuing and renewing registration cards. The new
system will also allow contractors to capture more accurately the daily
attendance of workers. The new registration card with embedded
microchip can store daily attendance records and display information
of other construction-related cards/certificates issued by different
authorities. It is anticipated that the new registration system, coupled
with the new registration card would provide a more comprehensive
and personalised service to workers as well as to the industry.
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Scholarships for Family Members of
Registered Construction Workers
Organised for the third time, the CIC
Scholarships which were awarded to egﬁﬁﬂm
students with outstanding academic
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Diploma of Secondary Education

aimed to recognise the contributions
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their children. The applications hit a | e

T AR htp:

record high in 2013, with the number il e S

of applicants increasing by 85% as | Smsssesacusuon i

LB
201388198

compared to the year before. The CIC
presented 10 awards to high academic
achievers. One of the students,
who was admitted to the Faculty
of Architecture at the University of Hong Kong, was awarded an
additional incentive-based scholarship as an encouragement.

Enforcement and Prosecution

The inspection team conducted 16,637 inspections of registration
cards and 1,804 inspections of construction sites in 2013. Out of the
total number of inspections, 28 construction sites failed to install a
card-reading device, 14 sites failed to provide Register of Statement
and 43 sites failed to make timely submissions of the daily attendance
record (DAR), which involved 122 DARs, but workers without valid
registration cards were not identified. A total of 25 court summons
were issued. Since Phase One Prohibition under the CWRO came into
effect on 1 September 2007, there has been a decline in the number
of violations and it was the first year since 2007 that there were no
identified cases of workers being without valid registration cards.

Considering the growing number of local construction projects and
the aim to strengthen the law enforcement, the inspection team has
started to conduct regular site inspections in the evenings and on
Sundays. Furthermore, to raise the awareness of frontline employees
on the proposed amendments to the CWRO, inspectors distributed
booklets to help contractors to promote the major amendments to
employees during morning meetings and break times.
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Scholarships for the Family Members of
Registered Construction Workers 2013
EMRERTARBNSS  EERDES (TP

FoEFMRERTARBES
& > 2013 FEREGHHFAR
BIEEHS  BFRHEFR2012F
€ L7t85% » @& A% 1 ER
RATHEBREFEEATNEE
BRENTAZ TR SLBEHK
AXREEECEFLEF - WIHN H
I EFBERNBRESEERE
MSRELBREBEEBINED S
PNGETIR

ARz

2013F A - KEKMILBRE T 16,637 @K
M EE 1,804 R EEL M - B HESE
28 [EE THE B R IGH N THb iR &
BERE  14EITH RN T F Rl a0 8%
it - 43 E T2 BIRRFIRRR H P K 12215
LELsE BREEELFFEBIGEM
BRI A o Bt LalE AR5 M3 e AR
BEHEF25FK - BT T - 2007 F9 A
1 BB —FRER SR LG SCE R FRE « 1238
FREEFETR  NFEEHANRDE
NEBERNAFEBRGEMENIA -

BEEAMEETREETNEHES - KEBKM
BMAFVRBERNBREREMAETT
WHKE - E—TMARHENE © tEIh
REARE R RN A B EMBIEIE
PINEEAR  KEFLERTEE T
KETIERFRAZBRRIKEBGN/ M
FUNTBERZ2R G/ MERA TR
NHREEAZR -



ZCB
T K it

ZCB, the first zero carbon building in Hong Kong, was officially opened to
the public on 5 January 2013. The construction of ZCB demonstrated the
proactive response of the Construction Industry Council (CIC) towards the
Government's initiatives to reduce carbon emissions in Hong Kong. It was
developed with the following vision and mission:

Vision

e 7CB is to serve as an exhibition centre, an education centre and
an information centre for low / zero carbon building design and
technologies and for promoting low carbon living in Hong Kong

Mission

e 7CB shall showcase the state-of-the-art eco-building design and
technologies to the construction industry locally and internationally
with a view to promote their application in Hong Kong

e  ZCB shall raise community awareness of low carbon living in
Hong Kong and promote behavioural changes towards low
carbon living by providing guided ZCB tours and organising
education programmes

e ZCB shall regularly disseminate the latest low / zero carbon
building technologies and practices to industry stakeholders

Guided Tours

Since its public opening, ZCB has offered on a daily basis three
guided tours six days a week. In 2013, more than 18,000 visitors
joined ZCB tours. The visitor profile is diverse, ranging from schools,
to professional institutions, government and public bodies, industry
stakeholders, environmental
groups, property management
companies, charitable or non-
government organisations, travel
agents, and private companies. In &
addition to local visitors, ZCB also
received 46 visiting delegations in
2013 from the Mainland, Macao,
Malaysia, Thailand, Switzerland,
France, Spain, the United Kingdom

and the United States of America.
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Publicity and Promotion

In 2013, the following activities, which attracted more than 25,000
visitors and participants, were organised:

e Easter Family Fun
Weekend — This
two-day event
offered an extensive
array of fun-filled =
and educational
activities through
recycling artwork
workshops and an
Easter egg hunt.

e Low Carbon
Weekend Fair
— Following the .
trend of going
green, a bazaar
was held each
weekend in August
and September
2013 with three L&
major themes of “Eat Natural”, “Go Green” and “Support Local
Creativity”. More than 30 booths selling local organic vegetables,
healthy food, handmade arts and crafts, and organic healthcare
products were set up.

e Upcycling Design
Competition — More
than 30 students
from various local
institutions joined
the Upcycling Design
Competition. The
competition aimed
at inspiring the

younger generation in promotlng low carbon living through innovative

designs. It demonstrated that going low carbon is not only eco-friendly
and economical, but can also be stylish and of good quality. An award
ceremony and exhibition were held in October 2013, which attracted 11
media coverage.
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Conference and
Exhibitions —
Presentations on
ZCB were made to
12 local and regional
conferences and
seminars in 2013.
ZCB participated
in the International
Low Carbon Technology Exhibition in Guangzhou and the Eco-
Expo Asia in Hong Kong during September and October 2013
respectively. These events helped further raise ZCB's regional and
international profile.

Technical Seminar on Potential Technological Development
for Zero Carbon Buildings — ZCB co-organised with the City
University of Hong Kong and INSA Lyon, France, on a two-day
seminar for international and local experts to share research and
practices in low / zero carbon building technologies. The seminar
aimed at drawing on the synergies of participants to come up
with workable suggestions in association with research directions
for zero carbon building developments suitable for high rise and
high density subtropical environments.

Low Carbon X'mas
Fest — This two-
day event invited
the public to make §
use of old and
unwanted material
to create new and
different Christmas
decorations as part & .
of ZCB’s initiatives to promote low carbon living.

Zero Carbon Building Journal — ZCB is a pioneering project in
Hong Kong. In order to share the valuable experience gained
from the project and the latest advances in low / zero carbon
building design, technologies and relevant regulations, ZCB
is preparing to publish the first issue of Zero Carbon Building
Journal in January 2014.
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ZCB Ambassador Scheme

FHR 1 K fEFHE

The ZCB Ambassador Scheme, launched
in 2013, aims to enrich the participants’

CONSTRUCTION
INDUSTRY COUNCIL

BERAE

ZCB Student

green knowledge by engaging them in
delivering guided tours to ZCB visitors after
201 3-2014

the necessary training, and to help spread
the ZCB message to the schools, friends,

Ambassador Scheme

RIBEEKERE

SRR R P TR M AL AT B -
EHEBEBBIINREEER w2 R
EMRRAZ  BHEAMLMARS
B Bk - KE - THEEHRitR
| EHTIARAL - RAIREEE
AHBERBRERRINEEEEE

families, work places and communities

SIERERA - PR « ST — RS

of the participants. We are honoured
to have Mr. CHAN Mo-po, Secretary for
Development, as the Commander of i
the ZCB Ambassadors. In addition, the
scheme is supported by 15 Honorary

Ambassadors and 26 Professional
Ambassadors as of 2013.

Overwhelming responses from schools were received for enrolment
in the scheme. In 2013, ZCB successfully recruited over 800 Student
Ambassadors. A ZCB Student Ambassador Handbook listing various
ways to live a low carbon life and encouraging others to do so, was
prepared.

Zero Carbon Building Limited

In order to take forward the vision and mission of ZCB effectively, the
CIC set up an independent company named Zero Carbon Building
Limited to manage the daily operation of ZCB. The company was
incorporated on 9 May 2013 and was approved as a charitable
institution for tax exemption under section 88 of the Inland Revenue
Ordinance.
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Awards and Recognitions

ZCB received the following local and international awards in 2013 in
recognition of its innovation and environmental performance:

e Grand Award Winner of the Innovation Award of the Year of
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors Hong Kong Property
Awards 2013

e FuturArc Green Leadership Award 2013 by BCl Asia

e Innovation Award 2012/2013 — Champion Award in
Construction Category by Hong Kong Institution of Engineers

e  Best Innovative Green Building Award — Bronze Award by MIPIM
Asia 2013

e Winner of the International Project of the Year Award, 2013 by
Australian Institute of Quantity Surveyors

Project Works

As an experimental project, ZCB enrolled the testing and commissioning
of various technologies and systems at its premises throughout the
year with a view to optimising its performance. All projects have been
completed and the majority of defects identified have been fixed.

Fund Raising

More than HK$7 million in sponsorship in kind was raised for the
upgrading of Eco-Home and for an energy efficient outdoor lighting
demonstration project. Both projects will be completed in 2014.

In addition, a cash sponsorship of HK$230,000 was secured through
the publication of the first issue of Zero Carbon Building Journal.
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Events Calendar

mE) B

18.01

Second Construction Technology
Forum — Construction for
Sustainability
FERBERRGRIE - AT RER
FREEE

31.01

SRS Briefing Session
DEREMHIEE TS

17.01

SRS Briefing Session
HBHAMmEIEENE

31.01 - 03.02

Careers & Education
Expo 2013
A RBFEE 2013
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02

28.02

SRS Briefing Session
DEEEMEEE S

22.02

CIC 6th Anniversary Cocktail Reception
BEXFZENEATES

21.02

SRS Briefing Session
DEEAmEEE

05.03

Meeting with the Construction Industry
Group of the British Chamber of Commerce

HESREEREREERE

08.03

Principal Luncheon
REKER B
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14.03

“Building Your Life” Experience Day

B=scviUN:N. 3

14.03

SRS Briefing Session
DEEEMEEEN S

16.03

Joint Recruitment Day for
Shatin to Central Link Project
W EAEEBARER

17.03 17.03

The Construction Industry Safety Award Scheme Construction Industry Sports Day
Award Presentation Ceremony 2012/2013 cum Fun Day cum Charity Fun Day
BiEF 2 BE IR RIS 2012/2013 BRFES REXEDHSBRES

gy oaEEEE
Eg r_zmzm

ET LS
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28.03

SRS Briefing Session
BEEMEEE S

H\ [

24 03
Famlly Day for

Ethnic Minorities

PHEBRERSA

o
e,
e fratty

raining Schemes to Enhance Manpower Suppiy
B MAE
Press Briefing Session E&Mi#®

Press Briefing Session on “New Training

Schemes to Enhance Manpower Supply”

[FriEal BAF] REHRS

EEH

30 - 31.03

ZCB Easter Family Fun Weekend
TR K 18 B0 & Fun

07.04

Recruitment Day for Ethnic
Minorities in Construction Industry

BEELBIESHRER

\ Construction Industry
Resource Centre

: - Open Day 2013
BEFEEMABOFRRE
2013
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Competition Law cum
Security of Payment Forum
BRRBNRRES X mig

CONSTRUCTION COI\APgT!TlON LAW cum

a Wessz~ SECURITY OF PAYMENT FORUM
! IC 3 A A e
P o T\ iR

e GF I FORUM

BbF PAYMENT FORUM g —
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“A Dream Comes True” Sham Shui Po Job Fair

[BAHEX | BERRKSHES

06.06

Meeting with the Labour Affairs Bureau
of the Macao SAR
EURPIRRIFTRE RIS TEHKAEME

08.06

Meeting with Jiangsu
Provincial Association of
Construction Safety and
Equipment Management
ETHEREL 2 HREBER
]

21.06

Seminar Series for Employers of the Construction ’ [

Industry - Part 1: Key Points of the Employees’
Compensation Ordinance and Its Practice in the
Construction Industry

BEXETBERY (—) K(EEMEGKRD) SRR
BETEREB D E
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24.06

Attended the Asia-Pacific Economic
Cooperation Workshop on Building
Information Modelling in Medan, Indonesia
HERENERBESRITH R AL ES FAME
FEMER T e
( MG \ "Resilient Asia-Pacific, Engine of Global Growth"
THIRD APEC SENIOR OFFICIALS' MEETING (SOM IiI)

Economi Coopération AND RELATED MEETINGS

Medan, 22 June - 6 July 2013



27.06

SRS Briefing Session
SEEAMEESN S

27.06

Visiting Construction Industry Council

United Kingdom
FhRPIREERES

26.06

Visiting Constructing Excellence

in United Kingdom

REBEFEER Constructing Excellence

T grRRiEnrEEZOn

ycTIO
o FOR RA“-WAY Sl

3 CAREER EXP 3 MTR

Career Expo for Railway Construction 2013

PRI EREIEE 2013

02.07

Attended the North District Council Social Services,
Labour and Economic Affairs Committee Meeting

hFEitREZEHERY S TAREEBEESER

'

ISTRICT

M’ﬁ@h% il
s 1 /]thiJ%MMr}: 0
_—] ligF

07.07

Contractor Cooperative Training
Scheme (E&M) Recruitment Day
AZEAERIIEE (KE)RER
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17.07

CIC Opened New Office in Wanchai
ZERNEFRRITMAE

23.07

Meeting with Shenzhen
Government Official Delegation

ERYIMBAEERKREE

25.07

SRS Briefing Session
BREEMmEEE

31.07

Attended the Inaugural Government
BIM Symposium in Singapore
RN B BB EE A
REFR &

HONG KONG GREEN BUILDING WEEK 2013 LAUNCHING CEREMOHY‘
EEGEEIE2013E S8

el ‘ E

01.08

Hong Kong Green Building Week 2013
Launching Ceremony
e he Rty FEFERER 2013/ FR
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03.08

Construction Industry Job

Fair in Tai Po District
AHEEEFRES

08.08

Meeting with the Hong Kong Construction
Industry Employees’ General Union
HESRERETEEM

Construction Summer Workshop
[EBREEE ] ABRRY

X% Success

24.08

CIC Photo Competition Award Presentation
FEIE AR L B SRR

Wi Habitat el
HOME

ccccc

02.08

Participated in “Green Joyful Home for Disabled”
Programme organised by Habitat for Humanity
SMCARBE R [ ELEBEE | 512
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LOW_CARBON WEEKEND FAIR }

W (G S AIRE 5 24 - 25.08

2013.8.24 = 9.22 (Sat & Sun EEHB)
& ZCB Low Carbon Weekend Fair

TR R AR A% B R R

. - B

Eof Nafural GoGreen  Support Local Creative
2N EZRE% MEEE  ERNMERR

Do B : 2018824-922

Briefing on the New Industry Schemes

St of organic vegetables and food, notural

o | i ‘ , Contribution Calculation Method

EREe—— " 8 Sheung Yoet Ro Kowloon Boy
P

o R = 3 Al 2 RS TTRA BB B A RE

SHREOIVARTIES - Couzans % MogoBardim s e,
B0 Froo Admisson RAIE

ForEnquvies & Detols IR
G 20090 [ pssAemdocebookemioczs (@ ZCatikscon

=@ X S | T e i
29.08

SRS Briefing Session
HEETMEIEENTE

30.08 - 01.09

ZCB Low Carbon
Weekend Fair \ .o S
TR R MR ' 30.08
& ERE

Biz-Green Dress Code Fashion Show
cum Award Presentation

[ A | | ARES 4 R B AR 44
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05.09
Visited Kai Tak Cruise

Terminal

LERIEE WA

04.09
Sustainable Building 2013 Hong Kong

Regional Conference Press Conference
203 FEARHBREERBEHES
B EEME

07.09

Hong Kong Green Building Week
2013 Green Building Tour
BERFEEER2013 0 EEEEE
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07 - 08.09

ZCB Low Carbon Weekend Fair
Thix R iR &£ 0E B KRR

- 11.09

Sustainable Building 2013
Welcome Cocktail

2013 FE A FERAER
EEMEREEREOES

12 - 13.09

Sustainable Building 2013 Hong Kong
Regional Conference

Q03 FEAHEERERBTANESE

B, Urban Density & Sustainability E
o : “ g auIs N e
ustaina

Regional Confi

istainability

h Density & Sustainability
%:ble Building 2013 HK
RCE
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14.09
Hong Kong Green Building Week 2013 Mini LegCo

& Youth Forum
BB BERFA 2013 5 F A EREBER A

13.09

Meeting with National Federation of

Chinese Construction Workers’ Union in Taiwan
| AN ERESEEATRR

16 - 18.09

4th Low Carbon Guangzhou Fair
25 V0 i 1 B N B PR R R AR EE mm AN BT

21 -22.09
ZCB Low Carbon Weekend Fair

12 - 14.09
Attended 2013 Taipei International

Forum on Occupational Safety & Health
HE 2013 TR ER 2 B EBRRE
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Dinner Reception of the Hong Kong Construction
Industry to Celebrate the 64th Anniversary of the PRC
EARERBMNPEARLNBNK 64 BFHEES

| MJ‘.‘\“JI'E\L.J;J/AH: Lk Ln} HM,an‘;fkl‘lHHJ‘r

iitREl | i i ®XTAR J28s
N -

26.09

SRS Br@\fmg Sess?n « 25.09
DEEEMEHEE TS

Award Presentation Ceremony of CIC Scholarships

_ e — for Family Members of Registered Construction
0 = goéiﬁffjésoaﬁ Workers 2013

'£8:30

ety | BEEFeSMEEET ARBIESS 2013 H e

27.09
Dreams Come True Lensing Ceremony
(B HEX) AiRER

29.09

Briefing Forum on Proposed
. i pm ISR Amendments to CWRO
BaR el o i o REEABEE — GREg
; TAGEMHEB) BBE#ER

EEFERA
(BEZIIZMER)
 Construction Industy -Wide Bri
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Technical Seminar on Potential Technological

Development for Zero Carbon Buildings
TR S Mo &
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03.11 =Y | 1Rl m
Sham Shui Po Job Fair of - ; -

Construction Industry

RRTRIEXRRES

19.11

Construction Industry Council Graduation Ceremony 2013

08.11 BIEERT 2013 FEREME

Meeting with Construction Scotland Leadership Group
A Construction Scotland Leadership Group €&

oS

09.11
ZCB Upcycling Design Competition
TR R BER S KRE
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28.11

SRS Briefing Session & ﬂ’

DEBEMHES TS

25.11

Press Briefing Session on

CIC Conference 2013
Pre-conference Dinner Reception

“Working Together for Industry Harmony” 2013 FRERZGWASRLARE

[RRRLHN (RESELR| CEHRES

S wainit | o CIC CONFERENCE 2010 o=

R eraune
Press Briefing Session 0 Z i & SR _';'jjmi“l‘ [?;JUUUE»;\F\{ UL el

HesEadifle) e
25.11.2013 2712019}

12.11

“Build Up Ambassador”
Appointment Ceremony

[Build THE WA | ZEER

A

20

|

X CIC Conference 2013
29.11 E ‘ “Construction Innovation:
Signed Memorandum of Productivity and Technology”
013 FEEFZGMTE
[ <EE - B T ERH

Understanding with
Constructing Excellence
B2 Constructing Excellence %

AR R T

e
Mr. Don WARD

=
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i

Awarded the Directors of The Year Awards

2013 for the Statutory/Non-profit-distribution

organisation — Boards

BF2013FEFREEFE CEE /
FENEAEAEL — FEFEA)

tute of Directors An

Ongrisn .
e XY

b o Kot st of i
CHINA TAI

@

D e TECHNICAL SEMINAR |
Use of Reduced Voltage Hand Tools in Construction Site
RGeS

BENEHTE

108 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL Ris#ise



18.12
CIC Annual Dinner 2013
2013 BEXETAFERE

i 5 e

CONSTRUCTION |NDUS'IRV CDUNCIL
BExae

1 l:um

_BEXEHRE

17.12

Good Housekeeping

Forum and Award
Presentation 2013
RIFT{ESER

2013’\‘='AE%

25-26.12
ZCB Low Carbon X'mas Fest
T hR R H K M Ak - AR BT

4 “

B CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL

&

ume EAiEE

. S mpunill

Good Housekeeping

Forum and Awar rd Presentation

i%ﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ%‘li@ﬁ

Heritage Practitioners Roundtable —
Rising above Project Challenges
NYREREIEEERRSH 0 T2
BIBDRE

19.12

Seminar Series for Employers of the
Construction Industry — Part 2:
Key Points of the Employment
Ordinance and Its Practice in the
Construction Industry
%ﬁ%@i%ﬁ?%ﬂ (=) KIEfR
GO MERZETEEBOZF

L a;‘:vt'l\\‘\\\“”

19.12

Briefing Session for Employers on
Employment Ordinance, Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance and the SRS
(REED) - GEEZE T AZEMEN) ko
EEMEEETE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Eiﬁ%ﬁlﬁﬁb’zi

Independent auditor’s report to the Members of
Construction Industry Council

(Established under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance,
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region)

We have audited the financial statements of Construction Industry
Council (the “Council”) set out on pages 113 to 142, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in fund and reserves
and cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Council’s responsibility for the financial
statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, the Construction Industry Council Ordinance
and the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance and for such
internal control as the Council determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 26(2) of the Construction Industry
Council Ordinance and section 82(2) of the Construction Workers
Registration Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

BIRUBEE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Council’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance and the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

20 June 2014
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Financial Statements

IR

Statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2013
Rt EREZ2013F12A31BILFEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #55T)

Note Pft&E 2013 2012
Income KA
Levy income BRI A 3 $664,037,182 $484,521,734
Course fee and related income ARIZIE R AR A 25,933,891 26,791,517
Registration fee income M EWA 4 9,450,939 -
Trade testing income TERIF WA 5,608,310 5,684,988
Investment and interest income & KA BUTA 5 9,341,250 10,530,830
Other income HA YA 69,999,565 47,461,136
$784,371,137 $574,990,205
Less: VpE
Expenditure g
Staff costs BEER 7 $263,954,080  $216,916,923
Training expenses SIARE A 132,928,241 77,748,396
Workshop sundries THHMES 23,843,409 19,149,054
General and administrative expenses —MITEREB R 8 64,989,369 49,234,791
Repairs and maintenance expenses HIEREER 8,638,694 6,306,866
Advertising and publicity expenses EEEEEA 26,165,909 13,719,719
Depreciation e 10 28,649,729 14,223,162
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE - KR
plant and equipment B o 132,747 19,271
(Reversal of)/provision for allowance RIREE
for doubtful debts (BEl) /B 14(a) (357) 171,888
$549,301,821 $397,490,070
Surplus for the year TEERER $235,069,316 $177,500,135

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2013

BRiERHEMEEWER 822013F 12831 BILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #55T)

Note Fff&E 2013 2012

Surplus for the year RKEEZREH $235,069,316 $177,500,135
Other comprehensive income rEEHMEEE

for the year
Items that may be reclassified to AR EmCEE ¢

profit or loss:
Available-for-sale investments: A ERE - 2(f)
- Net increase in fair value - RN EEZFHEE $897,588 $10,742,953
Total comprehensive income AEFEHAZEEE

for the year $235,966,904 $188,243,088

There is no tax effect relating to the above component of the other

comprehensive income.

The notes on pages 117 to 142 form part of these financial

statements.

B B8 bt B 2 E W as A R ER D R R
BRe-
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Financial Statements

Statement of financial position at 31 December 2013

B FEHR SRR F= M 2013412 A318

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #51)

Note FffzF 2013 2012
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VERE F G 10 $298,365,457 $260,933,471
Held-to-maturity investments BEFHAZKE 11 30,150,855 30,214,334
Available-for-sale investments AEHE2RE 12 42,914,087 42,016,499
$371,430,399 $333,164,304
Current assets REEE
Inventories BT 13 $1,413,034 $-
Levy receivables JE W R 14 42,785,263 40,727,268
Deposits, prepayments FHEEe  ENEMR
and other receivables R E A EUWIRIE 15 50,511,356 28,608,193
Cash and deposits at banks RITHES RER 16 777,053,172 575,640,881
Cash on hand FERS 160,400 103,000
$871,923,225 $645,079,342
Current liabilities REAE
Accounts payable and accruals T IRIA N BT & A 17 $79,271,914 $49,913,886
Deferred income on registration fee ERLIE=$ SIS N 18 8,772,535 -
Amount due to Construction Workers — FE{TiZiEZE T AFE
Registration Authority BEIEBIRIEA 19 - 18,643,379
$88,044,449 $68,557,265
Net current assets REEEFHE $783,878,776 $576,522,077
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERABER $1,155,309,175 $909,686,381
Non-current liability FnBAE
Deferred income on registration fee S ERTE WA 18 $6,729,338 $-
Net assets EEFE $1,148,579,837 $909,686,381
Represented by: RFE:
Accumulated fund E2RES $757,514,938 $522,445,622
General reserve @S 389,353,310 386,426,758
Investment revaluation reserve BREEHREE 1,711,589 814,001
$1,148,579,837 $909,686,381

RIS RE R 201456 A20 B EEZE
¥R EBRBRERERRK WA T
ATHREWER

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Members of Construction Industry Council on 20 June 2014 and
were signed on their behalf by:

Mr. LEE Shing-see, GBS, OBE, JP TR - SEHEE  OBE - XF#T

Chairman, Construction Industry Council BEXEREER
Ir CHAN Siu-hung PRAAME T2RM
Member, Committee on Administration and Finance TERENBEEEGKE

FNTERENMEBAMBERR 2 —

BB o

The notes on pages 117 to 142 form part of these financial
statements.
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B H5ak

Statement of changes in fund and reserves for the year ended 31 December 2013

HENRBIEBERER 822013F12A31B1LFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA #55T)

Investment
Accumulated General  revaluation
Note fund reserve reserve Total
P&t 2EES EhfRE REEMFEE b
(Note (a)) (Note (b))
(§(a)) (&)
At 1 January 2012 R2012F1818 (3344945487 $380426,758 _ $(9,928,952) $721,443,293
Surplus for the year AEFRH $177,500,135 $- $-  $177,500,135
Other comprehensive income Hib2E K . . 10,742,953 10,742,953
Total comprehensive income AEEHEZENES
forthe year Smsws 5810742953 $158,203,088
At 31 December 2012 MH2012F12A31H
and 1 January 2013 K2013%1818 (3522445622 $386426,758  _ $814,001 _$909,686,381
Surplus for the year FEERH $235,069,316 $- $-  $235,069,316
Other comprehensive income Hip2mRa . . 897,588 897,588
Total comprehensive income AEEEZENR
for the year $235009316 §: _..$897,588  $235966,904
Statutory transfer of net assets BEXTIAGMERR
from Construction Workers BEFEETEY
Registration Authority P - S2926552 b- 52,926,552
At 31 December 2013 R2013F12831H $757,514,938 _$389,353,310 $1,711,589 $1,148,579,837
Notes: it
(a) The general reserve has been set up to record the statutory transfer  (a) 3B #E 2P LA RNAZ 8RR B &I
of net assets from Construction Industry Training Authority on 1 REH2008F 1 A1 B EEEXT AR
January 2008 and Construction Workers Registration Authority MEEB2013F1 A18 (K9 ME
on 1 January 2013 (note 9). The general reserve was created EFEEATEE RV LBHELRE
for employing the reserve in the operations of the Council or by AZERENAGH A RE(E LK
investing the reserve in such manner as the Members think fit. ERPEENBRELD - HREHEE
The Members may apply the general reserve for any other special A o KB Al BT E A4 Bl A i
purpose. JERBRALBRERE -
(b) The investment revaluation reserve comprises the cumulative net (b) REBEREHELOFAIHRLE 7 KES
change in the fair value of available-for-sale investments held at the EFRPERBI RO R FEEZER
end of the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with the IRAR & SHBR M & 2(F) AR ©

accounting policy in note 2(f).
The notes on pages 117 to 142 form part of these financial statements.
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2013
HERER BZ2013F12831BILEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars JA7E#5T)

FNTE 1 BNNEBAT BT RR 22—

Note Fd5E 2013 2012
Operating activities BEEE
Surplus for the year AFERHR $235,069,316 $177,500,135
Adjustments for: FE
(Reversal of)/provision for allowance RIRZEME
for doubtful debts (Bm) B (357) 171,888
Depreciation e 28,649,729 14,223,162
Investment and interest income & KA BUTA (9,341,250) (10,530,830)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - KRRk
plant and equipment B BB 132,747 19,271
Operating cash inflow before RTEEESLEH
changes in working capital ZEEHRERE $254,510,185 $181,383,626
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Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)
RERER EZ2013F 12831 BIEFE (B)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars LA/B#5T)

Note Fff&E 2013 2012
Increase in inventories ETF 18 0 (487,716) =
Increase in levy receivables JE W E A (2,057,638) (14,897,544)
Increase in deposits, prepayments e  BENEAK
and other receivables H A & W bR IE 45 N (21,342,535) (6,666,616)
Increase in accounts payables FETIRTE I
and accruals JEET & AN 27,725,808 6,000,521
Increase in deferred income R FEW A E B 152,364 -
Increase in amount due to Construction ##& 3 T A
Workers Registration Authority BIE R RIEIN = 14,612,320
Net cash generated from REEETHZ
operating activities HEFEE $258,500,468 $180,432,307
Investing activities REEH
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits W (188 RBiG
with original maturity —EAREHz
over three months RITFR $164,905,140  $(299,872,524)
Interest received WCER T, 7,313,129 9,682,819
Dividend received from WER AT HH B E
available-for-sale investments 2B 1,766,986 1,823,706
Purchase of property, AV - #25
plant and equipment B (66,216,662)  (205,709,827)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - B R
plant and equipment B RIECEeE 2,200 -
Cash from statutory transfer of EAEET AGEM
net assets from Construction EEREEFE
Workers Registration Authority ETEEBREES 9 103,570 -
Net cash generated from/(used in) HEB ~ (BAR) £E&
investing activities FERESEE $107,874,363  $(494,075,826)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReNERRELER
and cash equivalents T OR) 8 $366,374,831  $(313,643,519)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1B1BZERE&R
1 January ZRBELEAR 105,703,881 419,347,400
Cash and cash equivalents at 12A31AZR:
31 December RERREEE $472,078,712 _ $105,703,881
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRZERRELER
and cash equivalents BEZDM
Cash and deposits at banks RITHES RER 16 $777,053,172 $575,640,881
Cash on hand FEHR2 160,400 103,000
$777,213,572 $575,743,881
Less: Bank deposits with original B TR 3 E A EI AR
maturity over three months ZIRITIER 16 (305,134,860) (470,040,000)
$472,078,712 $105,703,881

FENTE1RENMHEBAMBRERZ —

statements. BRip o

The notes on pages 117 to 142 form part of these financial
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Notes to the Financial Statements

By 35 ¥R R M AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA #5t)

1 General

The Construction Industry Council (the “Council”) was established
as a statutory body on 1 February 2007 in Hong Kong under the
Construction Industry Council Ordinance (“the Ordinance”). The
Council is a non-profit making organisation and acts as an industry
co-ordinating body. Its principal functions are to forge consensus on
long-term strategic issues, convey the industry’s needs and aspirations
to the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government (the
“Government”), as well as provide a communication channel for
the Government to solicit advice on all construction-related matters.
In order to propagate improvements across the entire industry, the
Council is empowered to formulate codes of conduct, administer
registration and rating schemes, steer forward research and
manpower development, provide and co-ordinate training courses,
facilitate adoption of construction standards, promote good practices
and compile performance indicators and make recommendations with
respect to the rate of the levy.

Construction Workers Registration Authority (the “Authority”) was
established as a statutory body on 18 September 2004 in Hong
Kong under the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance. The
Authority was a non-profit making organisation in Hong Kong. Its
principal functions were to be responsible for the administration of
the Construction Workers Registration Ordinance and the supervision
of the registration of construction workers; set the qualification
requirements for registration or renewal of registration; make
recommendations with respect to the rate of levy; and perform
such other functions as were imposed on it under the Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance or any other enactment. On 1
January 2013, the Authority was amalgamated with the Council and
the Authority was dissolved since then. All rights, assets, liabilities
and obligations of the Authority have been vested in the Council and
the principal functions of the Authority are carried out by the Council
with effective from 1 January 2013.

The address of the registered office of the Council is located at 15/F,
Allied Kajima Building, 138 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2
(a)

(b)

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“"HKFRSs"”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the
Construction Industry Council Ordinance and Construction
Workers Registration Ordinance. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Council is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Council.
Note 2(c) provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these developments
to the extent that they are relevant to the Council for the
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except that the financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
stated at their fair values as explained in the accounting policy
set out in note 2(f).

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is also the functional currency of the Council.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the Council to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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(a)

(b)
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(c)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Council. Of these, the following

developments are relevant to the Council’s financial statements:

- Amendments to HKAS 1,
statements — Presentation of items of other comprehensive

Presentation of financial

income

- HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

- HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

The Council has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements —
Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately the items
of other comprehensive income that would be reclassified to
profit or loss in the future if certain conditions are met from
those that would never be reclassified to profit or loss. The
presentation of other comprehensive income in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income in these financial
statements has been modified accordingly. In addition, the

Council has chosen to use the new titles “statement of profit or

loss” and “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income” as introduced by the amendments in these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(d)

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27, Consolidated
and separate financial statements relating to the preparation of
consolidated financial statements and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation
— Special purpose entities. It introduces a single control model
to determine whether an investee should be consolidated, by
focusing on whether the entity has power over the investee,
exposure or rights to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and the ability to use its power to affect the amount
of those returns.

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Council changed
its accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has
control over an investee. The adoption does not change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Council in respect of its
involvement with other entities as a 1 January 2013.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual HKFRSs with
a single source of fair value measurement guidance. HKFRS 13
also contains extensive disclosure requirements about fair value
measurements for both financial instruments and non-financial
instruments. To the extent that the requirements are applicable
to the Council, the Council has provided those disclosures
in note 21(e). The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any
material impact on the fair value measurements of the Council’s
assets and liabilities.

Consolidation

No consolidated financial statements are prepared as the
Council's interest in the results and net assets of its subsidiary is
immaterial.
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(e) Subsidiary

(f)

Subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Council. The Council
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Council has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Council and other parties) are considered.

The Council provides funding support to its subsidiary, Zero
Carbon Building Limited, and the amount is charged to profit or
loss.

Investments in debt and equity securities

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated
at fair value, which are their transaction prices unless it is
determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs
from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a
quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs.
These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:

Dated debt securities that the Council has the positive ability and
intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised
cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Other investments in securities, being those held for non-trading
purpose, are classified as available-for-sale securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any
resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the investment
revaluation reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active market for
an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise
be reliably measured are recognised in the statement of financial
position at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)(i)). Dividend
income from equity securities and interest income from debt
securities calculated using the effective interest method are
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set
out in note 2(p)(v) and 2(p)(vi), respectively. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
debt securities are also recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(9)

When the investments are derecognised or impaired (see
note 2(h)(i)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity
is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Council commits to purchase/sell
the investments or they expire.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2(h)

(if)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and
equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

- Building and premises 25 years
- Motor vehicles 5 years
- Computer equipment 3-5 years
- Renovation and building facilities 5 years
- Furniture and fixtures 10 years
- Facilities, tools, machinery and

workshop equipment 5 years
- Other equipment 10 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.
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(h) Impairment of assets

)

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and
other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-
sale securities are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Council about one or more of the
following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined
and recognised as follows:

- For receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is material.
This assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised,
the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A
reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.

- For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the investment revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect of
available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through
profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in
respect of levy receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for
doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Council is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against levy receivables
directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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(1)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to identify indications that
the property, plant and equipment may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of
the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

(ii)
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

()

()

(k)

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is determined on the first-in first-out basis and comprises all
costs of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of operation less the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount
of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which
the reversal occurs.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(h)(i)).

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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U

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

(m) Employee benefits

(n)

(o)

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Council has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Council determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(p)

Assets that are held by the Council under leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Council are classified as operating leases.

Where the Council has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit
or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Recognition of income

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Council and the income and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, income is recognised in
profit or loss as follows:

(i) Levy income is accounted for on an accrual basis and is
recognised upon the assessment of the value of construction
operations by the Council.

(i) Course fee and related income and trade testing income are

recognised over the year of instruction or testing.

(iii) Registration fee income is recognised on a time proportion
basis. Unearned registration fee income is treated as
deferred income on registration fee.

(iv) Registration service fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Council’s right to receive payment is established.

(vi) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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(CAB¥EET)
(q) Related parties (q) AR
(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is (@) fWMBTHER  BEALHERH
related to the Council if that person: BEINREK BN BE 2R
Y RERS AT
(i) has control or joint control over the Council; (i) B EEHRE R
e il
(i) has significant influence over the Council; or (i) HEIBEBASATE)
%
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the (i) RESEBTETEEK
Council. =J0
(b) An entity is related to the Council if any of the following (b) fefER oI —IEEMGER - AlF
conditions applies: HEESNEZeRENEnE
FLEL
(i)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person () EEERBIZFEQEHMEA
identified in (a). AT e FE S o
(i) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence (i) FB@OEFTIBAL HH
over the entity or is a member of the key management HAERESEATENSER
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity). HER (KBEERNEA
A)MEZEEENKE -
Close members of the family of a person are those family R Z IR K EERK 8B BB R AT ¥ 5% A
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced THEBEERENEETRENKTZZK
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. REZERNRERKS o
3 Levy income 3 #BEWA
2013 2012
Private sector FLaTiE $285,420,736 $222,984,497
Public sector NETIR 267,627,979 190,933,869
Others (note) Htp T2 (5) 110,659,084 70,264,879
Penalty on overdue levy B BRI RGR 2 STk 329,383 338,489

$664,037,182 $484,521,734

Note: Others include levy income on construction operations relating to & : EM TR BEFMAELLKSER - &

the port and airport development, Mass Transit Railway, Express BEE - SREK - EEER MEE
Rail Link, South Island Line, Penny’s Bay Railway, Kwun Tong Line B BEGLES  AESERDITE
Extension, West Island Line and Shatin Central Line. THEIEE WEEURA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

In accordance with the provisions of section 32 of the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance, a levy is imposed at the rate of 0.5%
on the value of all construction operations undertaken or carried
out in Hong Kong, for which tender has been submitted on or after
20 August 2012, and with a total value exceeding $1,000,000.
Construction operations the tender for which was submitted before
20 August 2012 and before 10 January 2000 were subject to old levy
rates of 0.4% and 0.25%, respectively.

Additionally, in accordance with the provisions of section 23 of the
Construction Workers Registration Ordinance, a levy is imposed
at the rate of 0.03% on the value of all construction operations
undertaken or carried out in Hong Kong, for which the tender has
been submitted or a construction contract has been entered or the
construction operations have begun on or after 24 February 2005 and
with a total value exceeding $1,000,000.

4 Registration fee income

Registration fee income represents registration fees received and
receivable from construction workers applying for registration which
normally has a validity period of 36 months in accordance with the
Construction Workers Registration (Fees) Regulation (CAP 583(B)).
Registration fee income relating to future periods are treated as
deferred income on registration fee (note 18).

5 Investment and interest income

BIECREEESIEAD E3216 FSMRA
EEBEITI N 201248 A 20 B sk A%
ERIZEE - mAREE 81,000,000 7T 2
FTEREETRERERE » BRER0.5% °
B#E20129F 8 A20H Z A1 % 20104 1 A
10BZRIEERZEENREETRE - AIH 5l
REMRE (A5 51/50.4% 5 0.25%) &
RHBGK ©

BIE CEE T AEMHER) F 231 - &
SREDBETIR2005F2 524 H sk
URERIZE FiREGH /BEREE
T# - mAEEEER1,000,0007T 28
iEE TR - BURER0.03% °

4 FMEBUWA

SMERRARNEEFZIMORETAD
W REKRFMER  FMEa 8RR
(GEEZET A (BR) #01) (%583(B)
) —MRA36MEA - BERKRNEME
WA gfaEMEBREERARE (K
18) °

5 RERFMBEWA

2013 2012
Interest on held-to-maturity debt securities ¥ZFIEIH 2 EEFEHFIE $1,414,164 $1,381,491
Interest on bank deposits RITFHZFE 6,160,088 7,618,091
Other interest income H b A 12 12
Total interest income on financial B AR EA T EE
assets not at fair value through M EERTEHA
profit or loss $7,574,264 $8,999,594
Dividend from available-for-sale AEHERE 2R E
investments 1,766,986 1,531,236
$9,341,250 $10,530,830
6 Other income 6 HflrA
2013 2012
Service fee income from Construction REREXETAGFHEERR
Workers Registration Authority (note 23)  RIARIEE YA (K171 23) $- $15,422,415
Reimbursement of trainees’ allowances RSB ER, 63,128,565 26,496,420
Other miscellaneous income H b ZEIE UL A 6,871,000 5,542,301
$69,999,565 $47,461,136
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(LAVSEEST)
7 Staff costs 7 BIRK
2013 2012
Contributions to the defined FEHFRIRETE
contribution retirement plan RO LR $18,051,120 $16,302,711
Salaries, wages and other benefits Ml - TE RHMER 245,902,960 200,614,212

$263,954,080 $216,916,923

8 General and administrative expenses 8 —MRITHHAX
General and administrative expenses included: —RRITHHAZBIE
2013 2012
Operating lease charges: LB ERE
minimum lease payment IEBE R $3,486,872 $3,166,367
Auditors’ remuneration Z BTN & 298,200 184,200
Cost of inventories (note 13) EFRA (i 13) 1,647,904 -

9 Statutory transfer of net assets fromthe 9 BEXT AZMEERE
Authority EFELEEER

As set out in note 1, by virtue of section 72(1) of the Construction — HRHMIFE1 ATl - BRIR GREZE T AT MIE

Workers Registration Ordinance, all rights, assets, liabilities and ) £ 72(1)1& - #2013F1 518 & -

obligations of the Authority were vested in the Council and the EERHET - EE  BEREEEHERN
*éé/\ ‘\i/\

principal functions of the Authority are carried out by the Council Z& - MEERNEFZBRENSHEAZH
with effective from 1 January 2013. 1T °

Net assets transferred to the Council on 1 January 2013 are as 20131 A1 BEBZRSENEEFEN

follows: I
Inventories ETF $925,318
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables  1&® « B & A I H fth fE W IR 18 236,014
Amount due from the Council R RIE 18,643,379
Accounts payables and accruals JEATIRIE N BT E A (1,632,220)
Deferred income on registration fee s &R A (15,349,509)
Subtotal NeF $2,822,982
Cash on hand FERE $103,570
Net cash inflow MAIRE FE8 $103,570

Total FEE $2,926,552
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Notes to the Financial Statements
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 Property, plant and equipment 10 1% - MBERBRE
Facilities,
tools,
Renovation machinery
Building and Furniture and
and Construction Motor ~ Computer building and  workshop Other
premises in progress vehicles  equipment facilities fixtures equipment  equipment Total
BENREF ERIE AE BiRME %R HER R - Btk g
BFRIE EE#E I8 #W
RISBRE
Cost: A
At 1January 2012 #2012
1A1R $5 $22,482,000 $458,106  $8,982,526 $36,774,000  $1,575,921 $22,798,310  $4,328,632 $97,399,500
Additions R - 180,660,156 ° 5,930,464 13,629,385 40,654 4,074,709 1,374,459 205,709,827
Transfers ELl2 203,142,156 (203,142,156)
Disposals HE - - - - - - (26,180) (18,100) (44,280)

At 31 December 20124
2012 12A31H $203,142,161 $- $458,106  $14,912,990 $50,403,385  $1,616,575 $26,846,839  $5,684,991 $303,065,047

At 1January 2013 420134

1TR1HE $203,142,161 $- $458,106 $14,912,990 $50,403,385 §1,616,575 $26,846,839  $5,684,991 $303,065,047
Additions P 19,686,664 - 693,700 6,994,041 32,102,146 322,456 5,575,162 842,493 66,216,662
Disposals HE - ° o o (3,110) (12,100) (26,996) (258,421) (300,627)

At 31 December R 2013%
2013 12A31H $222,828,825 $- $1,151,806 $21,907,031 §$82,502,421  $1,926,931 $32,395,005  $6,269,063 $368,981,082

Accumulated RitiE
depreciation:

At 1 January 2012 720124

1818 $- $-  $274,465 $5736,113 $13,101,716  $237,037 §$7,645362  $938,730 $27,933,423

Charge for the year R FEI2E 338,571 - 38,660 1,563,259 6,854,587 158,874 4,782,315 486,896 14,223,162
Written back on & {47 B

disposals - - - - - - (17,205) (7,804) (25,009)

At 31 December 720124
2012 128318 $338,571 $- $313,125  $7,299,372 $19,956,303 $395,911 $12,410,472  $1,417,822 $42,131,576

At 1January 2013 720134

1A18 $338,571 $- $313,125  $7,299,372  $19,956,303 $395,911 $12,410,472  $1,417,822 $42,131,576

Charge for the year AN [ 17 # 9,021,448 - 170,985 3,105,296 10,116,983 173,611 5,457,038 604,368 28,649,729
Written back on  (H 14 2 [B1

disposals - - - - (3,058) (6,115) (24,244) (132,263) (165,680)

At 31 December R 2013%
2013 12A31H $9,360,019 $- $484,110 $10,404,668 $30,070,228 $563,407 $17,843,266  $1,889,927 $70,615,625

Net book value: 1R EME :

At 31 December 720134
2013 124318 $213,468,806 $- $667,696 $11,502,363 $52,432,193  $1,363,524 $14,551,739  $4,379,136 $298,365,457

At 31 December 720124
2012 128318 $202,803,590 $- $144,981 $7,613,618 $30,447,082  $1,220,664 $14,436,367  $4,267,169 $260,933,471
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11 Held-to-maturity investments

BIR5¥aR P R
(BAFBHEE)

11 EZFWEZ2RE

2013 2012

Unlisted debt instruments ELEMESEE

The held-to-maturity investments are neither past due nor impaired.

12 Available-for-sale investments

$30,150,855 $30,214,334

FEIHAZREYEBRANELRE -

12 At EZRE

2013 2012
Equity securities listed on EEABERSMERAR]
The Stock Exchange of R EREES
Hong Kong Limited (at market value) (LATI{ERT) $42,914,087 $42,016,499
Fair value of individually impaired B RIE R E ) = 1
equity securities BHE AT EE $35,305,217 $34,109,496

As at 31 December 2011, the Council’s available-for-sale equity
securities were individually determined to be impaired on the basis of
a material decline in their fair value below cost which indicated that
the cost of the Council’s investment in them might not be recovered.
Impairment losses on these investments were recognised in profit or
loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(h)(i).

13 Inventories

Inventories in the statement of financial position represent finished
goods.

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expenditure and included in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is as follows:

HZE2011F12A8318  #memaftEs
Bt FFEBYREREAFEEEAX
BEEEERNKAN  BTRZENEHRIRE
FRA S AR REUR Bl T - (EHRE - B
R ERNRERE - BIREMFE20)G)FT
FIBUR « MIBEETTHER -

13 EfF

B RSAMIRTR A5 B BT B o

BERBEERSZ B Y ABRAERE
bR ERERANSTAOT

2013 2012

Carrying amount of inventories sold EHETMIREE $1,647,904 $-
14 Levy receivables 14 BB

2013 2012

Levy receivables JFE WK $45,672,125 $43,693,438

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RIREE (2,886,862) (2,966,170)

$42,785,263 $40,727,268

All levy receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

A R TR —F AU E -
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The average credit period on levy receivables granted to the
contractors is 28 days after the contractor receives the notice of
assessment. Further details on the Council’s credit policy are set out in
note 21(a).

No penalty is imposed on the contractor for the specified period of
28 days. Thereafter, penalty is imposed at 5% of the unpaid amount.
If the amount of the levy or surcharge, including any penalty imposed
remains unpaid within three months after the expiry of the specified
period, a further penalty of 5% of the unpaid amount will be
imposed on the outstanding balance. The Council would provide fully
for all long outstanding receivables, having considered, inter alia, the
likelihood of recoverability based on historical experience.

Included in the Council’s levy receivables balance are debtors with a
carrying amount of $1,026,697 (2012: $423,795) which are past due
at the reporting date for which the Council had not provided for any
doubtful debts as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Council
did not hold any collateral over these balances.

(a) Impairment of levy receivables

Impairment losses in levy receivables are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Council is satisfied that recovery
of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against levy receivables directly (see note 2(h)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the
year is as follows:

AR AEAREFHEBEM A 28
AABNEK - ERZESERBERNE—
FHE - BHIRME21@)

FEFEEE 28 REAMIYE MR AT - BB IR &
BB W R B 5% B AT K
BRI INE - BIEATEKNE K -
HEFrERAO 28 XERERERO =R
AR - AEBERIZBBRINEN = E
F o BN ARBNRENS% - ZFECRE
BEBREFERE R Rms - SRE%
REMIRIRIEH 2 8B -

FZSRRBROEHRA - EPIREE
$1,026,697 (2012 4F : $423,795) K&
REXBHREBBEELNR  FE2ER
EUIRIE 2 ERE XM EERNEE - Bif
EEBERET UKL - MAEAZSRIKE
TEHEE - AU ERZFTRUGRIELE
A EE R o

(a) BB ZRE

FEM R 2 BB B 1B & A IR P RC
o RIFmemREKOSREe T
Hif o Ale HEEBRIEG R
BEER (RHE2h)I))

FEARKREFGNESOT

2013 2012
At 1 January HW1A1TH $2,966,170 $2,819,007
Impairment loss recognised TR AR EE S - 171,888
Reversal of impairment B B [E] (357) -
Uncollectible amounts written off FEHRBEW R 8 (78,951) (24,725)
At 31 December W12 HA31H $2,886,862 $2,966,170

At 31 December 2013, the Council’s levy receivables of
$2,886,862 (2012: $2,966,170) were individually determined
to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to
contractors that were either under liquidation or in financial
difficulties and the Council assessed that the full amount of the
receivables to be irrecoverable.
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M2013F 12 A31 H » @20 E IR
7 $2,886,862 (2012 4F : $2,966,170)
B E B E E V5 LR E o 1875 B FE U
SR8 K (#1705 A% 5 A & B 765 TR 26 Y
AR B R R Y e E
WIRIB R 42 %8 ©



BT Rk B ot

(LAEHEET)
In determining the recoverability of levy receivables, the Council RS EEE KB RETRER - &
collectively considered any change in the credit quality of the ERERERVATEEEZRS AN
levy receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to IFEHEKBRNEREZERE
the reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due o  HRARMNEBEHEEEAEER
to the contractor base being large and unrelated. TEE - WBRENERARBER -
(b) Levy receivables that are not impaired (b) RAEHREZ EWER
The ageing analysis of levy receivables that are neither RB 1 3 5 88 R R ZRR B 1Y FE YL
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as FIRER DT
follows:
2013 2012
Current BN HA $41,758,566 $40,303,473
Less than one month past due BHALREA $981,357 $272,405
One to three months past due BAR1 Z31EA 42,428 -
Over three months past due m HARE A 31l A 2,912 151,390
$1,026,697 $423,795
$42,785,263 $40,727,268
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a REBHIORENELIRE - P RE
wide range of contractors for whom there was no recent history FE B A8 33 R B0 B Y A R o
of default.
15 Deposits, prepayments and other 15 RIEZRS - ANEARH
receivables it & L R 18
2013 2012
Deposits and prepayments FEZe LENER $10,291,628 $3,173,436
Other receivables Hfth fE IR IR
- Interest receivables - RURI S 1,793,326 1,468,712
- Others - Hits 38,426,402 23,966,045

$50,511,356 $28,608,193

The amount of the Council’s deposits expected to be recovered after TEHIR BB —FEREBNZIILEER
more than one year is $2,920,655 (2012: $2,035,713). All of the $2,920,655 (20124 : $2,035,713) > Ff
other deposits, prepayments and other receivables are expected to ﬁﬁi\ﬁﬂ?ﬁi\ CTENER - U RHE A ERIR

be recovered or recognised as expenditure within one year. All other C FEHER - FRNEA S ERER AL
receivables are neither past due nor impaired. IE B o b HNE fib fE R TE 35 I £ 280 HA SR
@ o
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16 Cash and deposits at banks

Cash and deposits at banks comprise cash and demanded deposits
held by the Council.

16 |ITRERFHK

BENRTRE REX
Ko

BRERE MEMTF

2013 2012
Deposits with banks RITFER

- with original maturity over - RIZEHA
three months Z R 31E A $305,134,860 $470,040,000

- with original maturity less than - R¥ZE HA
three months PR 31E A 455,000,000 80,000,000
Cash at bank RITHRE 16,918,312 25,600,881
$777,053,172 $575,640,881

17 Accounts payable and accruals

All of the accounts payable and accruals are expected to be settled
within one year or are repayable on demand.

18 Deferred income on registration fee

Deferred income on registration fee represents the unearned portion
which was not recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

19 Amount due to Construction Workers
Registration Authority

The amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

20 Taxation

Pursuant to section 28 of the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance, no provision for taxation has been made in the financial
statements as the Council is exempted from taxation under the Inland
Revenue Ordinance.

21 Financial risk management and fair values

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in the normal
course of the Council’s operation. The Council is also exposed to
equity price risk arising from its investments in equity securities. The
Council’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Council to manage these risks are
described below.
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17 EHRAR R ESTE A

PRBRMIRRLE ERBRSER —

o=y

:DﬁjZ/,\E\DHT{E‘ﬁ

FA

18 FEMEIEAE WA

At EIEE WA RNR R B st B R ER R
RERERUA ©

19 ENZEERTAZMER
SL R

Fro s IBhEEE - 28 WAANKE

20 BiE

R GREFRZSKRD) F 281K BANE
SRABBE GO BR BN RB - MR
TR R R A TR

21 KRB EERAFEE
2ATEFEARY HREAXEE -
mEE & N ERBROER o FEINEK
SR E M R %&éﬁ%\%ﬂ‘m%‘ B =
%o BREAXERBEARESFTANNE
LA

R ERERESFR] -



(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk

The Council’s credit risk is primarily attributable to levy
receivables and other receivables. Management manages this risk
as follows:

The Council reviewed the recoverable amount of the outstanding
balances at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the Council considered that the Council’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Council’s exposure to credit risk arising from levy
receivables are set out in note 14.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the Council, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Council’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Council managed liquidity risk by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

Interest rate risk

The Council was exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through
the impact of rate changes on interests bearing financial assets.
Interests bearing financial assets are mainly cash and deposits at
banks which are all short term in nature. Therefore, any future
variations in interest rates will not have a significant impact on
the results of the Council.

Equity price risk

The Council is exposed to equity price changes arising from
equity investments classified as available-for-sale equity
investments (see note 12). All of these investments are listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Listed investments held in the available-for-sale portfolio have
been chosen based on their longer term growth potential and
are monitored regularly for performance against expectations.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

BIR5¥aR P R
(BAFBHEE)

FERR

ZENEERRT2RA BEERK
Hh EUIR TR o B 3R FE B 7 55 TR L
wr

EERNET —MEHARE - HeRE
JE MR SR A AT Y B F0IE - FER TN A)
W eI RIB{E L @ E R EEE © Bt
H #Z2RAREgNEERRERAR
B BRI BB ERNE
ERk#E—FPEETHRBEL B
HURHIFE14 ©

RBESER

RBELEREBNREEEENZ
g MESCRY-—EFENRDE
SRREREE  UEEBERENE
B pHLRARERRHESER

EX - ARBBREERRYRER
RenE  EBRBEALHRR -
M=ER

ZEERNECMEENEELY
& EZBEREMREAR - HES
MEETZBRTESRER 28
HAKHLE - Bt - FIRRKEMR
EE) T EURSEEERNERY
@,

RS ERER

BEARNDBERARLERSER
EERMERERES (RME
12) - EAZHREAECNREEH A
R L -

EREUHEEREHEEFAN TR
B REREEEENRE  YeY
B RIBIEE SR -
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(e)

)

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that an increase/(decrease)
of 1% (2012: 1%) in the relevant stock market index (for listed
investments), with all other variables held constant, would have
increased/decreased the Council’s reserve by $429,141 (2012:
$420,165).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in
the Council’s investment revaluation reserve that would arise
assuming that the changes in the stock market index had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the
Council which expose the Council to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the fair values of
the Council’s equity investments would change in accordance
with the historical correlation with the relevant stock market
index, that none of the Council’s available-for-sale investments
would be considered impaired as a result of the decrease in the
relevant stock market index, and that all other variables remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2012.

Fair values

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement categorises fair value
measurements into a three-level hierarchy. The level into which
fair value is classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair values measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fall to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available

- Level 3 valuations: Fair values measured using significant
unobservable inputs
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(e)

(i)

72013512 A31 8 © fHatEHEBEK
M (RLETRE) 1% KER,
CRA) (2012%F 1 1%) » Bl H Ab
FESHHEBETET  e<HeHE
A, R 4) $429,141 (2012 4F -
$420,165) °

HRE DR - BRI TR
BN REHEREHL - YAES
NEHEBEESHI N ME PERE A
XEEMFAeRIANERERR
B MecHEEREEMRFHERTELR
BN (L - RIMMRRZES a1
RENAFEE SRABRTRER
MESLHEERERMEZ L - ARZL

ZemMRHEEREemN K™
BB TREMARAERE  REREM

ﬁE@“%%hT% It 55 A7 4% £
2012 FAEEIRELELETT ©
D PEE

AR FEETEZEMTA

NHEERS

(BERMBRELENE 135« RFE
BFtE) A FEEFE DAR=E
AR - BERTFEEND AR &2
ZEIENT RE MEZEAEBRG
ERMmEEMNT

- BIRA : RUAE 1 RBIERET
BRVEE BATEEREE
SBREEFEEBNERETSH
ANEAE FTHERE

- B2 AE2RBERE R
AFEE  MUAFEE 1RO
REERE - BTUEATA

REBKETE - T REURAIR
REfE ™ 5 Al SR BUE

- E3MBI: LEATARBUEK
G RAFHE



At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the only financial instruments
of the company carried at fair value were available-for-sale equity
securities of $42,914,087 (2012: $42,016,499) listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (see note 12). These instruments
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis and their fair
value measurements fall into Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy
described above.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out
of Level 3. The Council’s policy is to recognise transfers between
levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period
in which they occur.

BIR5¥aR P R
(BAFBHEE)

20124 KX20134F 12 A31 8 -
RENAFEEIIENE —S/T
B AB{EE$42,914,087 (2012F A&
$42,016,499) REBBE XS A
BRAR LA HE = IEES
(RMzE12) - BB ITANEE T
AREAFEEER - EAFEEE
EBER LA TEERANE IR -

HZE2012F K% 2013F/H12A318 -
WEB1HERE2HR T EZED
B B3RS T EIES ARE
e BERREELAFEERRZHE
HIREB R RS HERE - BREHE
EEVEAE

(1) Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair (i) FEAAFEEZKRZ 2@ TARNTFE
value ]
The carrying amounts of the Council’s financial instruments MR20124F K2013F M12H8318
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from VARG R S s AR FIIR A S 2 2 il &
their fair values as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. ERAE  HEBEATEBLEE

AER -

22 Commitments 22 #IE

(a) Capital commitments outstanding at (a) 201312 A 31 B KRBT
31 December 2013 not provided for in the RIRIBEPRIER 2 ERAED
financial statements were as follows: T

2013 2012

Contracted for BEL $39,701,041 $25,131,258
Capital commitments relate to the acquisition or development of BAFRELRBRAEARERYZE ¥
property, plant and equipment. TG

(b) At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum (b) R 2013412831 H » FA[H

lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

HNEERSERRAMNTNE
BEHREEANROT

2013 2012

Within one year B1ER $5,358,672 $3,451,618
After one year but within five years 1F1&BE5FR 10,717,344 -
$16,076,016 $3,451,618
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The Council is the lessee in respect of a property held under
operating lease. The lease runs for an initial period of three
years, with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. The lease does not include contingent rentals.

23 Material related party transactions

As the Members of the Council were being drawn from private or
public construction industry sector organisations, it is inevitable that
transactions will take place with organisations in which a Member
may have an interest. All transactions involving organisations in which
Members of the Council may have an interest, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year, were conducted on normal

EFAAT

H S

M -

BARERHR S °

commercial terms and in accordance with the Council’s procurement

procedures.

During the year, the Council entered into the following transactions

with related parties.

HEEFREREAL

Zoe BEBEHEWENERA -
EHBRENT BH=F  FIBEIERE
C TRIZEH - RIBHE
TREHFEENIARS -

23 EEALIRS

HREEKEEREREXERLERNE
HE Rk AN AR
BEERS - P RFEREENSEBIE
B ER R EGET R
BFETHMBEFRERE

e HIRAE
By 2% 6 YA AT B

EITTIIRS -

2013 2012

Construction Workers Registration BEETAGFMERER

Authority
- Registration service fee income - R REE WA $- $14,582,415
- Levy collection service fee income - BRI B WA - 840,000
Funding support to Hong Kong HEBGCREERS

Green Building Council RAC B 7 15 15,523,854 11,966,141
Funding support to HEWRAUMERAA]

Zero Carbon Building Limited B B 2 15 11,753,197 -

Balances with related parties at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

2013 2012
Amount due to Construction JERTIREET A
Workers Registration Authority EEBRIA $- $18,643,379
Net amount due from Hong Kong BB BGFERERS
Green Building Council HIIRIEFER 2,476,146 3,193,859
Amount due from FEW TR KB PR A A
Zero Carbon Building Limited HI IR IE 982,128 -
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(AP ¥EET)
24 Possible impact of amendments, new 24 EHEMEFREZE 2013 F
standards and interpretations issued but 122A31MBLEFERRE
not yet effective for the year ended 31 MHVIERT - FIEERIR R

December 2013 ENOEsE

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has BEZEZAMBHEXEREH - B LA
issued a number of amendments and new standards which are not &EM8ME TEFT RIIGEL - BEER
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2013 and which have W ARRREZ 2013412 A31 HIEFEAE
not been adopted in these financial statements. B IRRBEAMEMERERA

The Council is in the process of making an assessment of what the EEIRFaIEILZFEFIIER EER VR
impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of FHFZ - EZEAAL  GwefAAE
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them BIEE - TR REE H & HE(ERK R K75
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Council’s results of 5 - BRKEKRFTZE o

operations and financial position.
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Annex

B 4

Number of Higher Paid Staff ReEFHFzBEHE
The actual remuneration of staff members exceeding $1,000,000 in 20124 & 2013 E R G5ER:5$1,000,000
2012 and 2013 is shown below: MEBEHBNT :
2013 2012
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
BRE®A B E2R
$1,000,000 to $3,000,000 $1,000,000 £ $3,000,000 17 16
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Tel &3 : (852) 2100 9000

Fax & : (852) 2100 9090
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